
SWAGRUHA 
Infrastructure Limited 

Regd. Off : H. No. 6-3-1216/47/B,  
Road No. 3, Methodist Colony, Begumpet,  

Hyderabad, Telangana – 500 016, India 
E-mail: info@swagruhainfra.com              

  Website: www.swagruhainfra.com      
                                                                                                                                                                                                Phone - +91-40-40203050      

CIN: L24134TG1994PLC017327 

 
 
To,                                                  Date: 04.10.2016 
 
BSE Limited 
P. J. Towers, Dalal Street 
Mumbai - 400 001 
 
Dear Sir/ Madam, 
 
Sub:  Soft Copy of Annual Report for the financial year 2015-2016 (Scrip Code: 531909) 
Ref:  Regulation 34 of SEBI (LO&DR) Regulations, 2015  
 
With reference to the subject cited, please find enclosed the Soft copy of the Annual Report for the 
financial year 2015-2016. 
 
This is for the information and records of the exchange. 
 
Thanking you. 
 
Yours faithfully, 
 
For Swagruha Infrastructure Limited 
 
 
 
N L Kalyani 
Managing Director 
DIN: 01669808  
 
 
 



SWAGRUHA INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2015-2016



Corporate Informa�on

No�ce

Director’s Report

Annexure to the Director’s Report Management Discussion and Analysis Corporate Governance 
Report

Chief Financial Officer Cer�ficate

Auditors Cer�ficate of Corporate Governance

Independent Auditors Report

Balance Sheet

Statement of Profit and Loss

Cash Flow Statement

Notes to financial Statement Significant Accoun�ng Policies A�endance Slip

Proxy Form

CONTENT

1



SWAGRUHA INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

22nd ANNUAL REPORT

2015-2016

CIN: L24134TG1994PLC017327 SCRIP CODE: 531909 SCRIP ID: SWAGRUHA

||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||

CORPORATE INFORMATION

2

| Mrs. Nerogi Lakshmi Kalyani  : Managing Director (DIN 01669808)

| Mr. Jayasimha Reddy   : Execu�ve Director (DIN 06490738)

| Mr. Babu Sahebe Shaik   : Execu�ve Director cum CFO (DIN 06716186)

| Mr. Srinivasulu Konduru   : Non-Execu�ve Independent Director (DIN : 06489376) 

| Mr. Gopal Gillela    : Non-Execu�ve Independent Director (DIN: 06369221)

| Mr. Mathew Oommen  : Non-Execu�ve Independent Director (DIN: 01940161)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

REGISTERED OFFICE

H. No. 6-3-1216/47/B, Plot No. 47B,

Road No. 3, Methodist Colony,

Begumpet Hyderabad - 500 016

CORPORATE OFFICE

175/2, 1st & 2nd Floor, 

Raghavendra Nagar, Kaveri Road, 

9th cross, Dr. Rajkumar Road,

Mysore – 570019

STATUTORY AUDITORS 

M/s. Verma Mehta & Associates
104, Crea�ve Industries

Premises, Sunder Nagar, Kalina,

Santacruz (E), Mumbai- 4000098.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

S.S. Reddy & Associates
Prac�cing Company Secretaries

Plot No.6-3-354/13, A1, Suryateja Apartments, 

Hindi Nagar, Panjagu�a,  Hyderabad-500034.

INTERNAL AUDITOR

M/s. Tejas Nadkarni & Associates 

Chartered Accountants

Mumbai.

BANKERS

HDFC Bank, RT Nagar Branch

IDBI Bank, RT Nagar Branch



3

Mr. Gopal Gillela    :  Chairman

Mr. Srinivasulu Konduru  :  Member

Mrs. Nerogi Lakshmi Kalyani  :  Member

AUDIT COMMITTEE:

Mr. Gopal Gillela   :  Chairman

Mr. Srinivasulu Konduru   :  Member

Mr. Mathew Oommen  : Member

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

Mr. Gopal Gillela    :  Chairman

Mr. Srinivasulu Konduru  :  Member

Mrs. Nerogi Lakshmi Kalyani   :  Member

STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

Mr. Gopal Gillela    :  Chairman

Mr. Srinivasulu Konduru   :  Member

Mrs. Nerogi Lakshmi Kalyani  :  Member

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE:

REGISTRAR & SHARE TRANSFER AGENTS

Venture Capital and Corporate Investments Private Limited
Address : 12-10-167, Bharat Nagar, Hyderabad-500018

Contact No. : 040-23818475, 23818476, Fax : 040-238680240
Email : info@vccip.com   |    Website : www.vccipl.com

LISTED AT : BSE Limited
ISIN  : INE587J01027
WEBSITE : www.swagruhainfra.com
E-MAIL ID : info@swagruhainfra.com



4

 No�ce is hereby given that the 22nd Annual General Mee�ng of the Shareholders of M/s. 

Swagruha Infrastructure Limited will be held on Friday, 30th day of September, 2016 at 09:00 

A.M. at the Registered Office of the Company at H. No. 6-3-1216/47/B, Plot No. 47B, Road No. 3, 

Methodist Colony, Begumpet Hyderabad - 500 016, Telangana to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016, the Statement of 

Profit & Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date together with the Notes 

a�ached thereto, along with the Reports of Auditors and Directors thereon.

2. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Jayasimha Reddy (DIN: 06490738) who re�res by rota�on and 

being eligible, offer himself for re-appointment.

3. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifica�on(s), the following resolu�on as 

an Ordinary Resolu�on of appointment of Statutory Auditors of the Company in place of exis�ng 

statutory auditor:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sec�ons 139 & 142 other applicable provisions, if 

any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors ) Rules, 2014 and 

other rules framed there under, as amended from �me to �me, the appointment of M/s. 

M.M.Reddy & Co, Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditors of the Company in place of M/s. 

Verma Mehta & Associates., Chartered  Accountants ( Firm Registra�on No. 112118W) 

Hyderabad as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of this 

mee�ng �ll the conclusion of the next Annual General mee�ng ”.   

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifica�on(s), the following resolu�on as 

an Ordinary Resolu�on:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of sec�on 149, 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

rules made there under, Mr. Mathew Oommen (holding DIN 01940161), who was appointed as 

‘Addi�onal Director’ in the Board of the Company on 06.11.2015 pursuant to the provision of 

Sec�on 161 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Ar�cles of Associa�on of the 

Company , and whose term of office expires at the ensuing Annual General Mee�ng of the 

Company, and in respect of whom the Company has received a no�ce in wri�ng from a member 

under sec�on 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 signifying his inten�on to propose Mr. Mathew 

Oommen as a candidate for the office of a Director of the Company who meets the criteria of 

Independence as provided under Sec�on 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, be and is hereby 

appointed as Independent Director of the Company , not liable to re�re by rota�on, to hold office 

for a term of 5 (Five) consecu�ve years commencing from the date of his appointment as 

Addi�onal Director i.e. 06.11.2015 up to the conclusion of Annual General Mee�ng (AGM) to be 

held in the calendar year 2021 or 05.11.2020, whichever is earlier”.

 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mrs. N L Kalyani, Managing Director is authorized to take necessary 

ac�on in this regard including filing of necessary forms with Registrar of Companies, Hyderabad.”

5. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifica�on(s) the following resolu�on as 

a Special Resolu�on:

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 2016
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 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Sec�on 5 read with Sec�on 14 and all other applicable 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modifica�on(s) or re-enactment 

thereof, for the �me being in force) and the new dra� Ar�cles as contained in the Ar�cles of 

Associa�on be and are hereby approved and adopted in subs�tu�on, and to the en�re exclusion 

of the regula�ons contained in the exis�ng Ar�cles of Associa�on of the Company.”

 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (which term shall be deemed 

to include any Commi�ee of the Board cons�tuted to exercise its powers, including the powers 

conferred by this resolu�on), be and are hereby severally authorized to take all such steps as may 

be necessary, proper and expedient to give effect to this resolu�on.”

         For and on behalf of the Board
 Swagruha Infrastructure Limited

Sd/-
Place: Hyderabad N.L. Kalyani
Date: 30.08.2016  Chairman & Managing Director

         (DIN: 01669808)
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1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND 

VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. 

The instrument of Proxy in order to be effec�ve shall be deposited at the Registered office of the 

Company by not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Mee�ng. 

 Pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 105 of the Companies Act, 2013, a person can act as a proxy 

on behalf of not more than fi�y (50) members and holding in aggregate not more than 10% of the 

total share capital of the Company carrying vo�ng rights. A member holding more than 10% of the 

total share capital of the Company carrying vo�ng rights may appoint a single person as proxy, 

who shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder. The appointment of proxy shall 

be in the Form No. MGT.11 annexed herewith.

2. Explanatory Statement pursuant to Sec�on 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of the 

Special Business to be transacted at the Annual General Mee�ng as set out in the No�ce is 

annexed hereto.

3. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 

24.09.2016 to 30.09.2016 (Both days Inclusive).

4. Members holding shares in the electronic form are requested to inform any changes in 

address/bank mandate directly to their respec�ve Depository Par�cipants. 

5. Members are requested to hand over the enclosed A�endance Slip, duly signed in accordance 

with their specimen signature(s) registered with the Company for admission to the mee�ng hall. 

Members who hold shares in dematerialised form are requested to bring their Client ID and DP ID 

Numbers for iden�fica�on.

6. Corporate Members are requested to send to the Company’s Registrar & Transfer Agent, a duly 

cer�fied copy of the Board Resolu�on authorizing their representa�ve to a�end and vote at the 

Annual General Mee�ng. 

7. In case of joint holders a�ending the Mee�ng, only such joint holders who are higher in the order 

of names will be en�tled to vote. 

8. The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India has mandated submission of Permanent Account 

Number (PAN) by every par�cipant in securi�es market. Members holding shares in demat form 

are, therefore, requested to submit PAN details to the Depository Par�cipants with whom they 

have demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN details to 

the Company/ Registrar and Share Transfer Agents (M/s. Venture Capital and Corporate 

Investments Private Limited)

9. As a measure of austerity, copies of the annual report will not be distributed at the Annual 

General Mee�ng. Members are therefore, requested to bring their copies of the Annual Report to 

the Mee�ng.

 Members holding shares in the same name under different ledger folios are requested to apply 

for Consolida�on of such folios and send the relevant share cer�ficates to M/s. Venture Capital 

and Corporate Investments Private Limited, Share Transfer Agents of the Company for their doing 

the needful.

NOTES 
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11. Members are requested to send their queries at least 10 days before the date of mee�ng so that 

informa�on can be made available at the mee�ng.

12. In respect of shares held in physical mode, all shareholders are requested to in�mate changes, if 

any, in their registered address immediately to the registrar and share transfer agent of the 

company and correspond with them directly regarding share transfer/transmission 

/transposi�on, Demat / Remat, change of address, issue of duplicate shares cer�ficates, ECS and 

nomina�on facility. 

13. In terms of Sec�on 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, a member of the company may nominate a 

person on whom the shares held by him/her shall vest in the event of his/her death. Members 

desirous of availing this facility may submit nomina�on in prescribed Form-SH-13 to the 

company/RTA in case shares are held in physical form, and to their respec�ve depository 

par�cipant, if held in electronic form.

 14. Electronic copy of the Annual Report for 2015-2016 is being sent to all the members whose Email-

IDs are registered with the Company/Depository Par�cipants(s) for communica�on purposes 

unless any member has requested for a hard copy of the same. For members who have not 

registered their email address, physical copies of the Annual Report for 2015-2016 is being sent in 

the permi�ed mode. 

15. Members may also note that the No�ce of the Annual General Mee�ng and the Annual Report for 

2015-2016 will also be available on the Company’s website www.swagruhainfra.com in for their 

download. The physical copies of the aforesaid documents will also be available at the Company’s 

Registered Office for inspec�on during normal business hours on working days. Even a�er 

registering for e-communica�on, members are en�tled to receive such communica�on in 

physical form, upon making a request for the same, by post free of cost. For any communica�on, 

the shareholders may also send requests to the Company’s investor email id 

info@swagruhainfra.com.

16. Vo�ng through electronic means

 Pursuant to Sec�on 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 & pursuant to regula�on 44 of SEBI (LODR) 

regula�ons, 2015, read with the relevant Rules of the Act, the Company is pleased to provide the 

facility to Members to exercise their right to vote by electronic means the business may be 

transacted through e-Vo�ng Services provided by Central Depository Services (India) Limited 

(CDSL). The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / list of Beneficial Owners 

as on 23.09.2016, are en�tled to vote on the Resolu�ons set forth in this No�ce. The e-vo�ng 

period will commence at 09.00 a.m. on 27.09.2016 and will end at 05.00 p.m. on 29.09.2016.The 

Company has appointed Mr. S. Sarveswar Reddy, Prac�sing Company Secretary, to act as the 

Scru�nizer, to scru�nize the e-vo�ng process in a fair and transparent manner.  The Members 

desiring to vote through remote e-vo�ng refer to the detailed procedure given hereina�er.
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 The instruc�ons for e-vo�ng are as under:

(A) In case of members receiving e-mail:

(i) The vo�ng period begins on 27.09.2016 at 9.00 a.m. and ends on 29.09.2016 at 5.00 p.m. During 

this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in 

dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of 23.09.2016 may cast their vote 

electronically. The e-vo�ng module shall be disabled by CDSL for vo�ng therea�er.

(ii) The shareholders should log on to the e-vo�ng website www.evo�ngindia.com.

(iii) Click on Shareholders.

(iv) Now Enter your User ID 

 (i) For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 

 (ii) For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID, 

 (iii) Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the 

Company.

(v) Next enter the Image Verifica�on as displayed and Click on Login.

(vi) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evo�ngindia.com and voted 

on an earlier vo�ng of any company, then your exis�ng password is to be used.

(vii) If you are a first �me user follow the steps given below:

Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax 
Department (Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as 
physical shareholders)

 • Members who have not updated their PAN with the 
Company/Depository Par�cipant are requested to use 
the first two le�ers of their name and the 8 digits of the 
sequence number in the PAN field.

 • In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter 
the applicable number of 0’s before the number a�er the 
first two characters of the name in CAPITAL le�ers. Eg. If 
your name is Ramesh Kumar with sequence number 1 
then enter RA00000001 in the PAN field.

  Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in 
dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your demat account 
or in the company records in order to login.

 • If both the details are not recorded with the depository or 
company please enter the member id / folio number in 
the Dividend Bank details field as men�oned in 
instruc�on (iv).

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN

Dividend Bank 
Details
OR 
Date of Birth (DOB)
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(viii) A�er entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

(ix) Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selec�on screen. 

However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Crea�on’ menu 

wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. 

Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for vo�ng for resolu�ons of 

any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-vo�ng 

through CDSL pla�orm. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other 

person and take utmost care to keep your password confiden�al.

(x) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-vo�ng on the 

resolu�ons contained in this No�ce.

(xi) Click on the EVSN “Swagruha Infrastructure Limited.”

(xii) On the vo�ng page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the op�on 

“YES/NO” for vo�ng. Select the op�on YES or NO as desired. The op�on YES implies that you 

assent to the Resolu�on and op�on NO implies that you dissent to the Resolu�on.

(xiii) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the en�re Resolu�on details.

(xiv) A�er selec�ng the resolu�on you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirma�on box 

will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on 

“CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

(xv) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolu�on, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

(xvi) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” op�on on the Vo�ng 

page.

(xvii) If a demat account holder has forgo�en the login password then Enter the User ID and the 

image verifica�on code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the 

system.

(xviii) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app m-Vo�ng available for android 

based mobiles. The m-Vo�ng app can be downloaded from Google Play Store. Please follow the 

instruc�ons as prompted by the mobile app while vo�ng on your mobile.

(xix)  Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians

•  Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are 

required to log on to www.evo�ngindia.com and register themselves as Corporates.

•  A scanned copy of the Registra�on Form bearing the stamp and sign of the en�ty should be 

emailed to helpdesk.evo�ng@cdslindia.com.

•  A�er receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and 

password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote 

on.

•  The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evo�ng@cdslindia.com and 

on approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote. 

•  A scanned copy of the Board Resolu�on and Power of A�orney (POA) which they have issued in 

favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scru�nizer 

to verify the same.
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(xx)  In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-vo�ng, you may refer the Frequently Asked 

Ques�ons (“FAQs”) and e-vo�ng manual available at www.evo�ngindia.com, under help sec�on 

or write an email to helpdesk.evo�ng@cdslindia.com

17.  The Register of Directors’ and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding  maintained 

under Sec�on 170 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Register of Contracts or arrangements in 

which the directors are interested under Sec�on 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, will be 

available for inspec�on at the AGM.

18. Relevant documents referred to annual report of the Company are open for inspec�on at the 

Registered Office of the Company, during the office hours, on all working days between 10.00 

A.M. to 5.00 P.M. up to the date of Annual General Mee�ng.

19. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (vide circular nos. 17/2011 18/2011 dated April 21 and April 29, 

2011 respec�vely), has undertaken a ‘Green Ini�a�ve in Corporate Governance’ and allowed 

companies to share documents with its shareholders through an electronic mode. Members are 

requested to support this green ini�a�ve by registering/uploading their email addresses, in 

respect of shares held in dematerialized form with their respec�ve Depository Par�cipant and in 

respect of shares held in physical form with the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agents.

For and on behalf of the Board
Swagruha Infrastructure Limited

Sd/-
Place: Hyderabad N.L. Kalyani
Date: 30.08.2016  Chairman & Managing Director

         (DIN: 01669808)
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Item No 4:

 Mr. Mathew Oommen was appointed as Addi�onal Director on 06.11.2015 in terms of Sec�on 

161 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in the category of ‘Non-Execu�ve Independent’.  In terms of 

the Companies Act, 2013, an Addi�onal Director shall hold office up to the date of the next Annual 

General Mee�ng and be eligible for appointment to the office of a Director at any General 

Mee�ng in terms of Sec�on 160 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has received a no�ce 

from a member under sec�on 160 of the Companies Act 2013, along with requisite deposit 

proposing the candidature of Mr. Mathew Oommen for the office of Director under the category 

of Independent Director.

 In order to ensure compliance with the provisions of Sec�ons 149 and 152 of the Companies Act, 

2013 read with Rules made there under and Schedule IV of the Act, it is proposed that approval of 

the shareholders be accorded for the appointment of Mr. Mathew Oommen as ‘Independent 

Director’ for a term up to 5 consecu�ve years commencing from the date of his appointment as 

Addi�onal Director i.e. 06.11.2015 up to the conclusion of the Annual General Mee�ng (AGM) to 

be held in the calendar year 2021 or 05.11.2020, whichever is earlier and pass the resolu�on set 

out at Item No. 4.  

 Mr. Mathew Oommen has confirmed compliance with the criteria of Independence as provided 

under Sec�on 149 (6) of the Act.  Further, in the opinion of the Board Mr. Mathew Oommen fulfil 

the condi�ons specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under, and he is 

independent of the Management, his con�nued associa�on with the Company would be of 

benefit to the Company.

 The Board of Directors recommends the Ordinary Resolu�on as set out at item no. 4 for approval 

of the Members.

 None of the other Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their rela�ves 

other than Independent Director, Mr. Mathew Oommen is in way concerned or interested, 

financially or otherwise, in this Resolu�on. 

Item No 5:

 The Ar�cles of Associa�on of the Company (“Ar�cles”) as currently in force was adopted pursuant 

to the provisions under the Companies Act, 1956. The Companies Act, 1956 has been superseded 

by the Companies Act, 2013. The references to specific sec�ons of the Companies Act, 1956 in the 

exis�ng Ar�cles of Associa�on is hence to be amended to align the extant Ar�cles with the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules there under.

 Salient aspects of the proposed amended Ar�cles:

 Under the proposed amended Ar�cles, salient aspects of Sec�ons of Table-F of Schedule-I to the 

Companies Act, 2013 which sets out the model Ar�cles of Associa�on for a Company limited by 

shares have been adopted. As men�oned in the previous Para, changes that are required to be 

carried out pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013 and rules there under coming into force have 

been duly carried out. 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Sec�on 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013
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 The resolu�on as set out in item No.5 has been recommended by the Board of Directors for 

approval of the Members by special resolu�on.

 The proposed new dra� of Ar�cles of Associa�on is also available for inspec�on by the Members 

at the Registered Office of the Company on any working day excluding public holidays and Sunday 

from the date here up to 29th September, 2016.

 None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their rela�ves are in any 

way are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the Special Resolu�on set out at item 

No.5 of the No�ce.

For and on behalf of the Board
Swagruha Infrastructure Limited

Sd/-
Place: Hyderabad N.L. Kalyani
Date: 30.08.2016  Chairman & Managing Director

         (DIN: 01669808)
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BOARD’S REPORT

Dear Members, 

The Directors have pleasure in presen�ng before you the Annual Report of the Company together with 

the Audited Statements of Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2016.

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY/HIGHLIGHTS, OPERATIONS, STATE OF AFFAIRS: 

The financial results of the company during the period ended 31st March, 2016 has been as under:

  Par�culars 2015-2016 2014-2015

  Total  Income 24.25 27.89

  Total Expenditure 18.19 18.85

  Profit Before Tax 6.06 9.03

  Provision for Tax  2.50 3.00

  Profit a�er Tax 3.56 6.03

  Earnings per share 0.003 0.00

Review of Opera�ons:

 Your Directors wish to report that your company has achieved the turnover of Rs. 24.25 lakhs for 

the financial year ended 31.03.2016 as against Rs. 27.89 lakhs for the financial year ended 

31.03.2015. The Profit a�er tax stood at Rs. 3.56 lakhs for the financial year ended 31.03.2016 as 

against Rs. 6.03 lakhs for the financial year ended 31.03.2015.

2.  EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE DATE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 

 There were no material changes and commitments affec�ng financial posi�on of the company 

between 31st March, 2016 and the date of Board’s Report. (i.e. 30/08/2016)

3.  CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY:

 During the period under review and the date of Board’s Report there was no change in the nature 

of business.

4.  PUBLIC DEPOSITS:

 The Company has not accepted any deposits falling within the meaning of Sec�on 73 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules 2014, during the 

financial year under review.

5.  TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

 During the year, no amount has been transferred to reserves.

6.  DIVIDEND:  

 Keeping the Company’s expansion and growth plans in mind, your Directors have decided not to 

recommend dividend for the year.
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7.  CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY:

 The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 7,50,00,000 (Rupees Seven Crore Fifity Lakhs 

only) divided into 7,50,00,000 equity shares (Seven Crore Fifity Lakhs only) of Rs. 1/- each only. 

The Paid –up capital of the company is Rs. 6,85,48,000 (Rupees Six Crore Eighty Five Lakhs Forty 

Eight Thousand only) divided into 6,85,48,000 equity shares (Six Crore Eighty Five Lakhs Forty 

Eight Thousand only) of Rs.1/- each.

8.  REVISION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

  There was no revision of the financial statements for the year under review

9.  DISCLOSURE OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:

 The Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements as designed and 

implemented by the Company are adequate. The Company maintains appropriate system of 

internal control, including monitoring procedures, to ensure that all assets are safeguarded 

against loss from unauthorized use or disposi�on. Company policies, guidelines and procedures 

provide for adequate checks and balances, and are meant to ensure that all transac�ons are 

authorized, recorded and reported correctly.

10.  DISCLOSURE OF ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNAL

 No orders have been passed by any Regulator or Court or Tribunal which can have impact on the 

going concern status and the Company’s opera�ons in future.

11.  PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENT WITH RELATED PARTIES

 During the year, the Company has not entered into any contract/arrangement/transac�on as per 

sec�on 188 of the companies act, 2013.

12.  BOARD MEETINGS DURING THE YEAR: 

 The Board of Directors duly met 5 (Five) �mes on 30.05.2015, 13.08.2015, 05.09.2015, 

06.11.2015 and 13.02.2016 in respect of which mee�ngs, proper no�ces were given and the 

proceedings were properly recorded and signed in the Minutes Book maintained for the purpose.

13.  CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

 Corporate Governance is not applicable to the company since the paid up equity share capital and 

net worth of the company does not exceed Rs. 10 crores and Rs. 25 crores respec�vely. However, 

the company voluntarily provides a separate sec�on in the annual report �tled “Report on 

Corporate Governance” along with the Auditors’ Cer�ficate on Corporate Governance as 

s�pulated under Regula�on 34 read with Schedule V of Securi�es and Exchange Board of India 

(Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015.

14.  MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONS AND ANALYSIS REPORT

 Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review which forms part of 

Annual Report pursuant to the SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015. 

15.  EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

 As required pursuant to sec�on 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the 

Companies (Management and Administra�on) Rules, 2014, an extract of annual return in MGT 9 

as a part of this Annual Report – Annexure I
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16.  RISK MANAGEMENT:

 The Company has put in place a mechanism to iden�fy, assess, monitor and mi�gate various risk 

associated with the business. Major risk iden�fied are systema�cally discussed at the mee�ng of 

the Audit commi�ee and Board of Directors of the company, In line with the new regulatory 

requirement, the company has framed the Risk Management policy to iden�fy and assess the key 

risk areas, monitor and report compliance and effec�veness of the policies and procedures.

 17.  COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:

 The Board of Directors of the your Company had already cons�tuted various Commi�ees in 

compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013/Lis�ng Agreement and SEBI (LODR) 

Regula�ons, 2015 viz. Audit commi�ee, Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee, 

Stakeholders Rela�onship Commi�ee.

 During the year under review, in compliance with the provisions of the lis�ng Agreement and SEBI 

(LODR) Regula�ons, 2015 the Board had also cons�tuted the Risk Management Commi�ee.

 All decisions pertaining to the cons�tu�on of Commi�ees, appointment of members and fixing of 

term of reference/role of the commi�ee are taken on record by the Board of Directors.

 Details of the role and cons�tu�on of commi�ees, including the number of mee�ngs held during 

the financial year and a�endance at mee�ngs, are provided in the corporate governance sec�on 

of the Annual Report.

 18.  BOARD EVALUATION

 The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evalua�on of its own performance, Board, 

Commi�ees and individual Directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the Corporate 

Governance requirements as prescribed by Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng 

Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements), Regula�ons 2015 (“SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons”).

 The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board a�er seeking inputs from all the 

Directors on the basis of the criteria such as the Board composi�on and structure, effec�veness of 

Board processes, informa�on and   func�oning, etc.

 The performance of the Commi�ees was evaluated by the Board a�er seeking inputs from the 

commi�ee members on the basis of the criteria such as the composi�on of commi�ees, 

effec�veness of commi�ee mee�ngs, etc

 The Board and the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee reviewed the performance of the 

individual Directors on the basis of the criteria such as the contribu�on of the individual Director 

to the Board and commi�ee mee�ngs like preparedness on the issues to be discussed, 

meaningful and construc�ve contribu�on and inputs in mee�ngs, etc. In addi�on, the chairman 

was also evaluated on the key aspects of his role.

 In a separate mee�ng of Independent Directors, performance of Non-Independent Directors, 

performance of the Board as a whole and performance of the chairman was evaluated, taking 

into account the views of Execu�ve Directors and Non-Execu�ve Directors. The same was 

discussed in the Board mee�ng that followed the mee�ng of the Independent Directors, at which 

the performance of the Board, its Commi�ees and individual Directors was also discussed. 

Performance evalua�on of Independent Directors was done by the en�re Board, excluding the 

Independent Director being evaluated. The manner in which the evalua�on was carried out and 

the process adopted has been men�oned out in the Report on Corporate Governance.
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19.  DIRECTORS AND KEY MANANGERIAL PERSONNEL:

 Mr. Mathew Oommen was appointed as Addi�onal Director w.e.f. 06.11.2015. Now the Board 

proposes to appoint him as Independent Director subject to necessary compliances.

 In accordance read Sec�on 152 of the Act, Mr. Jayasimha Reddy, Director re�res by rota�on at the 

ensuing Annual General Mee�ng and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.  

 As required under regula�on 36 (3) of the SEBI (LODR), Regula�ons, 2015, a brief par�culars of 

the Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment are given as under:-:

     Name of the Director Mathew Oommen jayasimha Reddy

 Date of Birth 16.11.1978 05.04.1971     
 Date of Appointment 06.11.2015 23.03.2013
 Qualifica�on Graduate Graduate
 Exper�se in specific func�onal areas Experience Experience
 in the field of in the field of
 Infrastructure Infrastructure
 Directorships held in other companies  Nil   Nil
 (excluding private limited and foreign  
 companies)
 Membership/Chairmanship of  Nil   Nil
 commi�ee of other companies 
 (includes only Audit Commi�ee and 
 Stakeholders Rela�onship Commi�ee)
 No. of Shares held in the Company Nil   Nil
 Inter se rela�onship with any Director N.A.           N.A.

22.  DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS ON ANNUAL BASIS:

 The Company has received declara�ons from Mr. Srinivasulu Konduru , Mr. Gopal Gillela and Mr. 

Mathew Oommen, Independent directors of the company to the effect that they are mee�ng the 

criteria of independence as provided in Sub-sec�on (6) of Sec�on 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 

and Regula�on 25 of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015.-

Annexure-II

23.  DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

 In pursuance of sec�on 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors hereby confirm that:

a) In the prepara�on of the annual accounts, the applicable accoun�ng standards had been 

followed along with proper explana�on rela�ng to material departures; 

b) The Directors had selected such accoun�ng policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and es�mates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 

state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the 

company for that period;

c) The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accoun�ng 

records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company 

and for preven�ng and detec�ng fraud and other irregulari�es;

d) The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and
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e)  The Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that 

such internal financial controls are adequate and were opera�ng effec�vely.

f) The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and opera�ng effec�vely.

24. INFORMATION ABOUT THE FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE / FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 

SUBSIDIARIES / ASSOCIATES:

 The company does not have any subsidiary, Joint venture or associate company which have 

become or ceased to be its subsidiaries, joint venture or associate company during the year.

25.  STATUTORY AUDITORS:

 M/s. Verma Mehta & Associates, Chartered Accountants, re�re at the ensuing Annual general 

mee�ng and have declared their unwillingness to con�nue to act as Statutory Auditors of our 

Company due to their preoccupa�on. 

 A consent to act as Statutory Auditor of your Company has been obtained from M/s. M.M. Reddy 

& Co, Chartered Accountants.

 Thus, considering the same, your Board proposes the appointment of M/s. M.M. Reddy & Co, 

Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditors of the Company from the conclusion of this Annual 

General Mee�ng to the conclusion of next annual general mee�ng.

26. INTERNAL AUDITORS: 

 Pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 138 of the Companies read with rules made there under, the 

Board has appointed M/s. Tejas H Nadkarni & Associates., Chartered Accountants are the internal 

Auditors of the Company.

27.  SECRETARIAL AUDIT:

 Pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 134(3) (f) & Sec�on 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, 

Secretarial audit report as provided by M/s. S. S. Reddy & Associates, Prac�cing Company 

Secretaries is annexed to this Report as Annexure III

28.  AUDIT REPORTS:

(a)  Statutory Auditors Report:

 The Board has duly reviewed the Statutory Auditor’s Report on the Accounts for the year ended 

March 31, 2016 and has noted that the same does not have any reserva�on, qualifica�on or 

adverse remarks. However, the Board decided to further strengthen the exis�ng system and 

procedures to meet all kinds of challenges that may occur in the industry.

(b)  Secretarial Audit Report: 

 The Board has duly reviewed the Secretarial Audit Report on the Compliances according to the 

provisions of sec�on 204 of the Companies Act 2013 and the following are the qualifica�ons, 

reserva�ons or adverse remarks:

 (i)  The Company has belatedly filed few of the e-forms required to be filed under Act and certain 

e-forms required to be filed are s�ll pending for filing. 

 (ii) The Company has not appointed Company Secretary as required under sec�on 203 of the 

Companies Act, 2013.
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 (iii) The Company has Managing Director and CFO namely Mrs. N L Kalyani and Mr. Babu Shaik 

respec�vely. But, the e-form filing as required under the Companies Act, 2013 for appointment of 

CFO is not done.

29.  CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR):

 Since the Company does not has the net worth of Rs. 500 Crores or more, or turnover of  Rs. 1000 

Crore or more, a net profit of Rs. 5 Crore or more during the financial year or, Sec�on 135 of the 

Companies Act,2013 rela�ng to Corporate Social Responsibility is not applicable and hence the 

Company need not adopt any Corporate Social Responsibility Policy.

30. COMPLIANCE WITH SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) 

REGULATIONS, 2015: 

 In compliance with SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 the 

Company has signed uniform lis�ng agreement with BSE Limited and framed the following 

policies which are available on Company's website i.e. www.swagruhainfra.com.

• Board Diversity Policy

• Policy on preserva�on of Documents

• Risk Management Policy

• Whistle Blower Policy

• Familiarisa�on programme for Independent Directors

• Related Party Policy

• Code of Conduct under Insider trading Regula�ons.

31.  CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE OUTGO:

 The required informa�on as per Sec.134 of the Companies Act 2013 is provided hereunder:

A. Conserva�on of Energy:

 Your Company’s opera�ons are not energy intensive. Adequate measures have been taken to 

conserve energy wherever possible by using energy efficient computers and purchase of energy 

efficient equipment.

B.  Technology Absorp�on:

 1. Research and Development (R&D): NIL

 2. Technology absorp�on, adop�on and innova�on: NIL

C.  Foreign Exchange Earnings and Out Go:

 Foreign Exchange Earnings:  NIL

 Foreign Exchange Outgo: NIL

32.  PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:

 The company has not given loans or Guarantees during the year under review.

33.  CREDIT & GUARANTEE FACILITIES: 

 The Company has not availed facili�es of Credit and Guarantee during the year.



19

34.  DISCLOSURE ABOUT COST AUDIT:

 Cost Audit is not applicable to your Company. 

35.  RATIO OF REMUNERATION TO EACH DIRECTOR:

 No Remunera�on is paid to the directors.

36.  NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ COMPENSATION AND DISCLOSURES:

 None of the Independent / Non-Execu�ve Directors has any pecuniary rela�onship or 

transac�ons with the Company which in the Judgment of the Board may affect the independence 

of the Directors.

37.  CEO/ CFO CERTIFICATION:

 The Managing Director and CEO/ CFO cer�fica�on of the financial statements for the year 2015-

16 is provided elsewhere in this Annual Report.

38.  INDUSTRY BASED DISCLOSURES AS MANDATED BY THE RESPECTIVE LAWS GOVERNING THE 

COMPANY:

 The Company is not a NBFC, Housing Companies etc., and hence Industry based disclosures is not 

required.

39.  SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

 The company is in compliance with SS 1 & SS 2.

  40.  EVENT BASED DISCLOSURES:

 During the year under review, the Company has not taken up any of the following ac�vi�es:

 1. Issue of sweat equity share:  The Company has not issued any sweat equity shares during the 

year under review and hence no informa�on as per provisions of Sec�on 54(1)(d) of the Act read 

with Rule 8(13) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014.

 2. Issue of shares with differen�al rights: The Company has not issued any shares with differen�al 

rights and hence no informa�on as per provisions of Sec�on 43(a)(ii) of the Act read with Rule 4(4) 

of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014.

 3. Issue of shares under employee’s stock op�on scheme: The Company has not issued any equity 

shares under Employees Stock Op�on Scheme during the year under review and hence no 

informa�on as per provisions of Sec�on 62(1)(b) of the Act read with Rule 12(9) of the Companies 

(Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014

 4.Non- Exercising of vo�ng rights : During the year under review, there were no instances of non-

exercising of vo�ng rights in respect of shares purchased directly by employees under a scheme 

pursuant to Sec�on 67(3) of the Act read with Rule 16(4) of Companies (Share Capital and 

Debentures) Rules, 2014.

 5. Disclosure on purchase by company or giving of loans by it for purchase of its shares: The 

company did not purchase or give any loans for purchase of its shares.

 6. Buy back shares: The company did not buy-back any shares during the period under review.

 7. Preferen�al Allotment of Shares: The company did not allot any shares on preferen�al basis 

during the period under review.

41.  EMPLOYEE RELATIONS AND REMUNERATION: 

 Your Directors are pleased to record their sincere apprecia�on of the contribu�on by the staff at 
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all levels in the improved performance of the Company. 

 None of the employees is drawing Rs. 8,50,000/- and above per month or Rs.1,02,00,000/- and 

above in aggregate per annum, the limits prescribed under Sec�on 197(12) of Companies Act 

2013 read with Rule 5 of Companies(Appointment & Remunera�on Of Managerial Personnel) 

Rules, 2014.

42.  DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, 

PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

 The Company has in place an An� Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of The 

Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace (Preven�on, Prohibi�on and Redressal) Act, 2013. 

Internal Complaint Commi�ee (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints received regarding 

sexual harassment. All employees are covered under this policy.

 The following is the summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed during the 

calendar year.

 • No. of complaints received:                      Nil

 • No. of complaints disposed off:                    Nil

43.  ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

 Your Directors wish to place on record their apprecia�on of the contribu�on made by the 

employees at all levels, for the con�nued growth and prosperity of your Company.

 Your Directors also wish to place on record their apprecia�on of business cons�tuents, banks and 

other financial ins�tu�ons, other statutory authori�es like SEBI, ROC, Stock Exchanges, NSDL, 

CDSL etc and shareholders of the Company for their con�nued support for the growth of the 

Company.

For and on behalf of the Board
Swagruha Infrastructure Limited

Sd/-
Place: Hyderabad N.L. Kalyani
Date: 30.08.2016  Chairman & Managing Director

         (DIN: 01669808)

Sd/-
                                                                                         Jayasimha Reddy Director 

(DIN: 06490738)
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Code of Conduct

 The Company has formulated and implemented a Code of Conduct for Board Members and 

Senior Management of the Company. Requisite annual affirma�ons of compliance with the 

respec�ve Codes have been made by the Directors and Senior Management of the Company.

 Cer�ficate of Code of Conduct for the year 2015-16 as per Regula�on 17(5) read with Regula�on 

34(3) Schedule V of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015.

 Swagruha Infrastructure Limited is commi�ed for conduc�ng its business in accordance with the 

applicable laws, rules and regula�ons and with highest standards of business ethics. The 

Company has adopted a “Code of Ethics and Business Conduct” which is applicable to all director, 

officers and employees.

 I hereby cer�fy that all the Board Members and Senior Management have affirmed the 

compliance with the Code of Ethics and Business Conduct, under a cer�ficate of Code of Conduct 

for the year 2015-16.

For and on behalf of the Board
Swagruha Infrastructure Limited

Sd/-
Place: Hyderabad N.L. Kalyani
Date: 30.08.2016  Chairman & Managing Director

         (DIN: 01669808)
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MGT 9
Extract of Annual Return

As on the Financial Year 31.03.2016
[Pursuant to sec�on 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies 

(Management and Administra�on) Rules, 2014]

Annexure I

I. CIN

ii. Registra�on Date

iii. Name of the Company

iv. Category / Sub-Category of the Company

v. Address of the Registered office and contact 
 details

vi. Whether listed company Yes / No

vii. Name, Address and Contact details of 
 Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

L24134TG1994PLC017327

07.04.1994

Swagruha Infrastructure Limited

Company limited by shares
/ Non-Government Company

H.No.6-3-1216/47/B, Plot No.47-B, Road
No.3, Methodist Colony, Begumpet,
Hyderabad – 500016.

Yes

Venture Capital & Corporate Investments 
Pvt. Ltd.
12-10-167, Bharat Nagar, Hyderabad, 
Telangana – 500018.
Phone: 040-23818475, 23818476
Email: info@vccipl.com, 
info@vccilindia.com 

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY:

All the business ac�vi�es contribu�ng 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company 
shall be stated:-

Sl.  Name and Descrip�on of main products  NIC Code of  % to total  
No.  /services      the Product /   turnover of the
          service    company

1 Construc�on Services 41001 73.06   41001   73.06
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III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:–

S.No. Name and Address of CIN/GLN Holding/Subsidiary % of Appli
 the Company  /Associate  shares cable
   Held  Sec�on 

The Company does not have any subsidiaries. 
     

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

I) Category-wise Share Holding;-

Category of No. of Shares held at the  No. of Shares held at the end  %Change
Shareholders beginning of the year  of the year    during
           the year

 Demat Physical Total % of Total Shares Demat Physical Total % of 

        Total
           Shares 

A. Promoters

(1)Indian          

Individual/  31264000 -- 31264000 45.61 3126400 -- 31264000 45.61 –

HUF

Central Govt. -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- –

State Govt .(s) -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- --

Bodies Corp. -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- –

Banks / FI -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- –

Any Other…. -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- –

Sub-total

(A) (1) :-  31264000 -- 31264000 45.61 31264000 -- 31264000 45.61 --

(2) Foreign         

a) NRIs -

Individuals -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- –

b) Other –

Individuals -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- –

c) Bodies Corp. -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- –

d) Banks / FI -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- –

e) Any

Other…. -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- –
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Sub-total
(A) (2):- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- --

Total 31264000 -- 31264000 45.61 31264000 -- 31264000 45.61 --

shareholding 

of Promoter 

(A) =(A)(1)+(A)

(2) 

B. Public

Shareholding         

1.Ins�tu�ons         

a) Mutual 

Funds -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- –

b) Banks / FI -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- –

c) Central Govt -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- –

d) State Govt(s) -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- --

e) Venture 

Capital 

Funds -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- –

f) Insurance

Companies -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- –

g) FIIs 14800 -- 14800 0.02 14800 -- 14800 0.02 --

h) Foreign

Venture 

Capital Fund -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- –

I) Others

(specify) -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- –

Sub-total 

(B)(1) 14800 -- 14800 0.02 14800 -- 14800 0.02 --

2. Non 

Ins�tu�ons

a) Bodies Corp. - -- - - - -- -- -- –

I) Indian 5098994 -- 5098994 7.44 8997064 -- 8997064 13.13 5.72

ii) Overseas -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- –

b) Individuals -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- –

I) Individual 521277 73000 594277 0.87 559558 18000 577558 0.84 0.03

shareholders 

holding 

nominal share  

capital up to 

Rs. 1 lakh



25

ii) Individual 21199744 9294000 30493744 44.49 22552955 3652000 26204955 38.23 6.26
shareholders
holding   
nominal 
share capital in
excess of 
Rs. 1 lakh
c) Others  
(specify)
1. Employee
2.NRI’s  919786 – 919786 1.34 1163715 – 1163715 1.70 0.36
3. Clearing  162417 – 162417 0.24 325908 – 325908 0.48 0.24
Members 
Sub-total  27902200 9367000 37269200 54.37 33614000 3670000 37284000 54.39 12.61
(B)(2)
Total Public 27917000 9367000 37284000 54.39 33614000 3670000 37284000 54.39 12.61 
Share holding
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)
(2)
C. Shares -- -- -- -- -- -- -- – – 
held by 
Custodian 
for GDRs & 
ADRs 
Grand Total 59181000 9367000 68548000 100 64878000 3670000 68548000 100 12.61
(A+B+C) 

(ii)Shareholding of Promoters

Sl. No. Share holder’s Name No. of Shares held at the
beginning of the year

No. of Shares held at the
end of the year

% Changed 
during the
year

Demat Physi-
cal

Total % of
Total
Shares

Demat Physi-
cal

Total % of
Total
Shares

1. N.L. Kalyani 31264
000

31264
000

- 45.61 31264
000

31264
000

- 45.61 Nil

Sl. No. Share holder’s Name No. of Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

No. of Share holding at the
end of the year

1. Nil

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding ( please specify, if there is no change)

Nil Nil Nil Nil

No. of
Shares

% of total
shares of the
company

No. of
Shares

% of total
shares of the
company



26

Sl. No. Share holder’s Name No. of Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

No. of Share holding at the
end of the year

(iv) Shareholding Pa�ern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, 
Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

No. of
Shares

% of total
shares of the
company

No. of
Shares

% of total
shares of the
company

1 BANSI PRASHAD KAYAST 6827957 11.54 5007957 7.72

2 PRASTUTI MULTI MEDIA AND 2255000 3.81 2755000 4.25

3 VENU  KONDI 1735208 2.93 2452882 3.78

4 ANEES ALNASIR GILANI 1000000 1.69 - -

5 SATISH BARTHUR GARADACHAR 968469 1.64 - -

6. TIDEL SILK TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED 950380 1.61 2770380 4.27

7. AMARESH  RAO  GAIKWAD 935303 1.58 - -

8. LOHITH H A 693000 1.17 693000 1.07

9. OBALESH VENKATESH 687500 1.16 1953500 3.01

10. NANDA KUMAR S 675000 1.14 675000 1.04

11. SHABARISH S N - - 669990 1.03

12. MUKKERA SAI KUMAR - - 1313000 2.02

Date wise Increase /Decrease in top 10 share holders Share Holding  during  the year specifying the 
reasons for increase/ decrease(e.g. allotment / transfer /bonus/ sweat equity etc): Purchase and sale of 
shares as men�oned above.

Sl. No. For Each of the Directors
and KMP

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumula�ve Share holding during
 the year

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

No. of
Shares

% of total
shares of the
company

No. of
Shares

% of total
shares of the
company

1. Mrs. Nerogi Lakshmi Kalyani

 At the beginning of the year 31264000 45.61 31264000 45.61

 Date wise Increase /Decrease in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel Share holding during the year 
specifying the reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/sweat equity etc): NIL

 At the End of the year 31264000 45.61 31264000 45.61

2. Mr. Jayasimha Reddy

 At the beginning of the year – –  –

 Date wise Increase /Decrease in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel Share holding during the year 
specifying the reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/sweat equity etc): NIL

 At the End of the year

3. Mr. Babu Sahebe Shaik

 At the beginning of the year – –  –

 Date wise Increase /Decrease in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel Share holding during the year 
specifying the reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/sweat equity etc): NIL

 At the beginning of the year
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4. Mr. Srinivasulu Konduru

 At the beginning of the year – –  –

 Date wise Increase /Decrease in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel Share holding during the year 
specifying the reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/sweat equity etc): NIL

 At the beginning of the year    –

5. Mr. Gopal Gillela

 At the beginning of the year – –  –

 Date wise Increase /Decrease in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel Share holding during the year 
specifying the reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/sweat equity etc): NIL

 At the beginning of the year    –

6. Mr. Mathew Oommen

 At the beginning of the year – – – –

 Date wise Increase /Decrease in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel Share holding during the year 
specifying the reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/sweat equity etc): NIL

 At the beginning of the year – – – –

V. INDEBTEDNESS 
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Indebtedness at the
beginning of the 
financial year

Secured Loans
excluding
deposits

Unsecured
Loans

Deposits Total
Indebtedness

Principal Amount

ii) Interest due but not – – – –
paid
iii) Interest accrued but
not due
Total (i+ii+iii) – – – –
Change in Indebtedness – – – –
during the financial year
Addi�on Reduc�on
Net Change
Indebtedness at the
end of the financial
year
I)Principal Amount
ii) Interest due but not
paid
iii) Interest accrued but 
not due 

Total (i+ii+iii)

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remunera�on to Managing Director, Whole-�me Directors and/or Manager: 

Sl. No. Par�culars of Remunera�on Name of MD/WTD/MANAGER Total Amount

1. Gross salary

 (a) Salary as per provisions contained 

 in sec�on 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

 (b) Value of perquisites u/s

 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

 (c) Profits in lieu of salary

 under sec�on 17(3) Income tax Act, 1961
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Sl. No. Par�culars of Remunera�on Name of MD/WTD/MANAGER Total Amount

2. Stock Op�on – –

3. Sweat Equity – –

4. Commission as % of profit Others, Specify... – –

5. Others, please specify – –

6. Total (A) – –

 Ceiling as per the Act – –

B. Remunera�on to other directors:

Sl. No. Par�culars of Remunera�on Name of Director Total Amount

1. Independent Directors – – – – –
 • Fee for a�ending board / 
     commi�ee mee�ngs 
 • Commission 
 • Others, please specify
 Total (1) – – – – –
2. Other Non-Execu�ve Directors  – – – – –
 • Fee for a�ending board / 
     commi�ee mee�ngs
 • Commission 
 • Others, please specify
 Total (2) – – – – –
 Total (B) = (1+2) – – – – –
 Total Managerial Remunera�on – – – – –
 Overall Ceiling as per the Act – – – – –

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

Sl. No. Par�culars of Remunera�on Key Managerial Personnel

  CEO Company Secretary CFO Total

1. Gross salary – – – –

 (a) Salary as per provisions

 contained in sec�on 17(1) of

 the Income-tax Act, 1961

 (b) Value of perquisites u/s

 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

 (c) Profits in lieu of salary under 

 sec�on 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961

2. Stock Op�on – – – –

3. Sweat Equity – – – –

4. Commission as % of profit others, – – – –

 specify... 

5. Others, please Specify – – – –

6. Total – – – –

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Sec�on of the  Brief  Details of Penalty / Authority (RD / Appeal made,
 Companies  Descrip�on  Punishment /  NCLT / COURT) if any (give
 Act  Compounding   Details)
   fees imposed     
A. COMPANY
Penalty – – – – –
Punishment – – – – –
Compounding – – – – –
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty – – – – –
Punishment – – – – –
Compounding – – – – –
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty – – – – –
Punishment – – – – –
Compounding – – – – –
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         For and on behalf of the Board
 Swagruha Infrastructure Limited

Sd/-
Place: Hyderabad N.L. Kalyani
Date: 30.08.2016  Chairman & Managing Director

         (DIN: 01669808)
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The Board of Directors 
M/s Swagruha Infrastructure Limited

Dear Sir,

 I undertake to comply with the condi�ons laid down in Regula�on 25 of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 read with sec�on 149 and Schedule IV of the 

Companies Act, 2013 in rela�on to condi�ons of independence and in par�cular: 

(a) I declare that upto the date of this cer�ficate, apart from receiving director’s remunera�on, I did 

not have any material pecuniary rela�onship or transac�ons with the Company, its promoter, its 

directors, senior management or its holding Company, its subsidiary and associates as named in 

the Annexure thereto which may affect my independence as director on the Board of the 

Company. I further declare that I will not enter into any such rela�onship/transac�ons. However, 

if and when I intend to enter into such rela�onships/transac�ons, whether material or non-

material I shall keep prior approval of the Board. I agree that I shall cease to be an independent 

director from the date of entering into such rela�onship/transac�on.

(b) I declare that I am not related to promoters or persons occupying management posi�ons at the 

Board level or at one level below the board and also have not been execu�ve of the Company in 

the immediately preceding three financial years.

© I was not a partner or an execu�ve or was also not partner or execu�ve during the preceding three 

years, of any of the following:

        (i) the statutory audit firm or the internal audit firm that is associated with the Company and

        (ii) the legal firm(s) and consul�ng firm(s) that have a material associa�on with the company

(d) I have not been a material suppliers, service provider or customer or lessor or lessee of the 

company, which may affect independence of the director, and was not a substan�al shareholder 

of the Company i.e., owning two percent or more of the block of vo�ng shares.

Thanking you.   

Yours Faithfully,

Sd/-
Place: Hyderabad Mathew Oommen
Date: 30.05.2016  (Independent Director)

ANNEXURE II

DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS ON ANNUAL BASIS
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The Board of Directors 
M/s Swagruha Infrastructure Limited

Dear Sir,

  undertake to comply with the condi�ons laid down in Regula�on 25 of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 read with sec�on 149 and Schedule IV of the 

Companies Act, 2013 in rela�on to condi�ons of independence and in par�cular:

(a) I declare that up to the date of this cer�ficate, apart from receiving director’s remunera�on, I did 

not have any material pecuniary rela�onship or transac�ons with the Company, its promoter, its 

directors, senior management or its holding Company, its subsidiary and associates as named in 

the Annexure thereto which may affect my independence as director on the Board of the 

Company. I further declare that I will not enter into any such rela�onship/transac�ons. However, 

if and when I intend to enter into such rela�onships/transac�ons, whether material or non-

material I shall keep prior approval of the Board. I agree that I shall cease to be an independent 

director from the date of entering into such rela�onship/transac�on.

(b) I declare that I am not related to promoters or persons occupying management posi�ons at the 

Board level or at one level below the board and also have not been execu�ve of the Company in 

the immediately preceding three financial years.

(c) I was not a partner or an execu�ve or was also not partner or execu�ve during the preceding three 

years, of any of the following:

        (i) the statutory audit firm or the internal audit firm that is associated with the   Company and

        (ii) the legal firm(s) and consul�ng firm(s) that have a material associa�on with the company

(d) I have not been a material suppliers, service provider or customer or lessor or lessee of the 

company, which may affect independence of the director, and was not a substan�al shareholder 

of the Company i.e., owning two percent or more of the block of vo�ng shares.

Thanking you.   

Yours Faithfully,

Sd/-
Place: Hyderabad Srinivasulu Konduru
Date: 30.05.2016 (Independent Director)

ANNEXURE II

DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS ON ANNUAL BASIS
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The Board of Directors 
M/s Swagruha Infrastructure Limited

Dear Sir,

  I undertake to comply with the condi�ons laid down in Regula�on 25 of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 read with sec�on 149 and Schedule IV of the 

Companies Act, 2013 in rela�on to condi�ons of independence and in par�cular:

 (a) I declare that upto the date of this cer�ficate, apart from receiving director’s remunera�on, I 

did not have any material pecuniary rela�onship or transac�ons with the Company, its promoter, 

its directors, senior management or its holding Company, its subsidiary and associates as named 

in the Annexure thereto which may affect my independence as director on the Board of the 

Company. I further declare that I will not enter into any such rela�onship/transac�ons. However, 

if and when I intend to enter into such rela�onships/transac�ons, whether material or non-

material I shall keep prior approval of the Board. I agree that I shall cease to be an independent 

director from the date of entering into such rela�onship/transac�on.

(b) I declare that I am not related to promoters or persons occupying management posi�ons at the 

Board level or at one level below the board and also have not been execu�ve of the Company in 

the immediately preceding three financial years.

(c) I was not a partner or an execu�ve or was also not partner or execu�ve during the preceding three 

years, of any of the following:

        (i) the statutory audit firm or the internal audit firm that is associated with the    Company and

        (ii) the legal firm(s) and consul�ng firm(s) that have a material associa�on with the company

(d) I have not been a material suppliers, service provider or customer or lessor or lessee of the 

company, which may affect independence of the director, and was not a substan�al shareholder 

of the Company i.e., owning two percent or more of the block of vo�ng shares.

Thanking you.   

Yours Faithfully,

Sd/-
Place: Hyderabad Gopal Gillela 
Date: 30.05.2016  (Independent Director)

ANNEXURE II

DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS ON ANNUAL BASIS
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To

The Members of

M/s. Swagruha Infrastructure Limited

 We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and 
the adherence to good corporate prac�ces by M/s. Swagruha Infrastructure Limited  (hereina�er 
called “the Company”). Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for 
evalua�ng the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

 Based on our verifica�on of the Company’s Books, Papers, Minute Books, Forms and Returns filed 
and other Records maintained by the Company and also the informa�on provided by the 
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representa�ves during the conduct of secretarial 
audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the financial year 
commencing from 1st April, 2015 and ended 31st March, 2016, complied with the statutory 
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board process and compliance 
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the repor�ng made hereina�er:

1. We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by M/s. Swagruha Infrastructure Limited (“The Company”) for the financial year 
ended on 31st March, 2016, according to the provisions of:

  I. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under for specified sec�ons 
no�fied and came in to effect from 12th September, 2013 and sec�ons and Rules no�fied and 
came in to effect from 1st April, 2014;

 ii. The Securi�es Contracts (Regula�on) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules made there   under;

 iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regula�ons and Bye-laws framed there under;

 iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regula�ons made there under to 
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) and Overseas Direct Investment and External 
Commercial Borrowings;

2.  Provisions of the following Regula�ons and Guidelines prescribed under the Securi�es and 
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (SEBI Act) were not applicable to the Company under the 
financial year 2015-16.

 I. The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Substan�al Acquisi�on of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regula�ons, 2011. Not Applicable, except yearly and event based disclosures.

 ii. The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regula�ons, 2009; Not Applicable

 iii. The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Delis�ng of Equity Shares) Regula�ons, 2009; Not 
Applicable.

 iv. The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securi�es) Regula�ons, 1998; Not 
Applicable.

 v. The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Annexure III



34

Regula�ons, 1993, regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; Not Applicable

 vi. The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Lis�ng of Debt Securi�es) Regula�ons, 
2008.Not Applicable.

 vii. The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (share based employee benefit) regula�ons, 2014, 
Not Applicable.

 viii. The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Prohibi�on of Insider Trading) Regula�ons, 2015 
Insider Trading regula�ons; The Company has framed code of conduct for regula�ng & 
repor�ng  trading by Insiders and for fair disclosure,2015 and displayed the same on 
company’s Website i.e. www.swagruha.com and all required disclosures from �me to �me as 
and when applicable are complied with.

 ix. The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regula�ons, 2015 were complied with to the extent applicable and 

  l The Company has signed Uniform lis�ng agreement with BSE Limited;

  l The company has framed the policies and conducted programmes as men�oned below 
and displayed the same on the company’s website i.e www.swagruha.com

   u Board Diversity Policy 

   u Policy on Preserva�on of Documents 

   u Risk Management Policy   

   u Whistle Blower Policy

   u Related Party Transac�on Policy

   u Familiariza�on programme for Independent Directors. 

   u An�-Sexual Harassment Policy

   u Code of Conduct

3.  During the year the Company has conducted 5 Board Mee�ngs, 4 Audit Commi�ee Mee�ngs and 
1 Independent Directors’ Mee�ng and we have also examined compliance with the applicable 
clauses of the following:

 I. Secretarial Standards issued by the Ins�tute of Company secretaries of India on mee�ngs of 
the board of Directors and general mee�ng. 

 ii. The Lis�ng Agreements and SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regula�ons, 2015 entered into by the Company with BSE Limited;

 iii. We have relied on the representa�on made by the management for the other applicable laws 
and its compliances under applicable Laws, Acts and Regula�ons. 

 We further report that the Compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws, like Direct 
and Indirect tax laws, has not been reviewed thoroughly in this audit since the same have been 
subject to review by statutory financial audit and other designated professionals.

4. During the financial year under report, the Company has complied with the provisions of the New 
Companies Act, 2013, Old Companies Act, 1956 to the extent applicable and the Rules, 
Regula�ons, Guidelines, Standards, etc., men�oned above subject to the following observa�ons;

OBSERVATIONS:

 (a) As per the informa�on and explana�ons provided by the Company, its officers, agents and 
authorized representa�ves during the conduct of secretarial audit, we report that 

 (I) The provisions of the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regula�ons 
made there under to the extent of: Not applicable.
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 (ii) External Commercial Borrowings were not a�racted to the Company under the financial year 
under report;

 (iii) Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) was not a�racted to the company under the financial year 
under report;

 (iv) Overseas Direct Investment by Residents in Joint Venture/Wholly Owned Subsidiary abroad 
was not a�racted to the company under the financial year under report.

 (v) As per the informa�on and explana�ons provided by the company, its officers, agents and 
authorized representa�ves during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we report that the 
Company has not made any GDRs/ADRs or any Commercial Instrument under the financial 
year under report.

 (b)We further report that:

   (i)  The Company has belatedly filed few of the e-forms required to be filed under Act and certain 
e-forms required to be filed are s�ll pending for filing. The process for the same have been 
ini�ated. 

 (ii) The Company has not appointed Company Secretary as required under sec�on 203 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

    (iii) The Company has Managing Director and CFO namely Mrs. N L Kalyani and Mr. Babu Shaik 
respec�vely. But, the e-form filing as required under the Companies Act, 2013 for 
appointment of CFO is not done.

       (iv)The Company has internal auditor namely Mr. Tejas H Nadkarni.

We further report that:-

• The Board of Directors of the Company is duly cons�tuted with proper balance of Execu�ve 
Directors, Non-Execu�ve Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composi�on 
of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in 
compliance with the provisions of the Act.

• We, further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company 
commensurate with the size and opera�ons of the company to monitor and ensure compliance 
with applicable laws, rules, regula�ons and guidelines.

• We further report that during the year under report, the Company has not undertaken 
event/ac�on having a major bearing on the company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred 
laws, rules, regula�ons, guidelines, standards etc.

Place: Hyderabad For S.S. Reddy & Associates
Date: 30.08.2016                     Sd/- 

          S. Sarveswar Reddy
                  Proprietor
               C. P. No: 7478
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To

The Members of
M/s. Swagruha Infrastructure Limited

Our report of even date is to be read along with this le�er.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit prac�ces and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the secretarial records. The verifica�on was done on test basis 

to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records.  We believe that the processes and 

prac�ces, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have relied on the reports given by the concerned professionals in verifying the correctness 

and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the company.

4. The compliance of provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regula�ons, 

standards is the responsibility of management. Our examina�on was limited to the verifica�on of 

procedures on test basis. 

5. The secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the company nor of the 

efficacy or effec�veness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

Annexure A

Place: Hyderabad

Date: 30.08.2016 
Sd/-

S. Sarveswar Reddy

Proprietor

C.P.No: 7478

For S.S. Reddy & Associates
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

** Corporate Governance is not applicable to the company as its paid up-equity capital and net 

worth does not exceed Rs. 10 crores and Rs. 25 crores respec�vely. However, the company 

voluntarily complies with Corporate Governance as a good governance measure to keep the 

stakeholders informed about the company.

 In accordance with Regula�on 34 (3) read with Schedule V of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 the report containing the details of Corporate 

Governance systems and processes at Swagruha Infrastructure Limited as follows:

1.  COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE:

 The Corporate Governance Structure in the Company assigns responsibili�es and entrusts 

authority among different par�cipants in the organiza�on viz. the Board of Directors, the Senior 

Management, Employees, etc. The Company believes that good Corporate Governance is a 

con�nuous process and strives to improve the Corporate Governance prac�ces to meet 

shareholder’s expecta�ons.

2. BOARD DIVERSITY:

 The Company recognizes and embraces the importance of a diverse board in its success. We 

believe that a truly diverse board will leverage differences in thought, perspec�ve, knowledge, 

skill, regional and industry experience, cultural and geographical background, age, ethnicity, race 

and gender, which will help us, retain our compe��ve advantage. The Board has adopted the 

Board Diversity Policy which sets out the approach to diversity of the Board of Directors. The 

Board Diversity Policy is available on our website, www.swagruhainfra.com.

3.  BOARD EVALUATION:

 SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015, mandates that the 

Board shall monitor and review the Board evalua�on framework. The framework includes the 

evalua�on of directors on various parameters such as:  

• Board dynamics and rela�onships

• Informa�on flows

• Decision-making

• Rela�onship with stakeholders

• Company performance and strategy

• Tracking Board and commi�ees’ effec�veness

• Peer evalua�on

 The Companies Act, 2013 states that a formal annual evalua�on needs to be made by the Board of 

its own performance and that of its commi�ees and individual directors. Schedule IV of the 

Companies Act, 2013 states that the performance evalua�on of Independent Directors shall be 

done by the en�re Board of Directors, excluding the director being evaluated. 

 The evalua�on of all the directors and the Board as a whole was conducted based on the criteria 

and framework adopted by the Board. The Board approved the evalua�on results as collated by 

the nomina�on and remunera�on commi�ee.
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4.  FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAM FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

 All new independent directors inducted into the Board a�end an orienta�on program. Further, at 

the �me of the appointment of an independent director, the Company issues a formal le�er of 

appointment outlining his / her role, func�on, du�es and responsibili�es. 

5.  LISTING AGREEMENT:

 The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), on September 2, 2015, issued SEBI (Lis�ng 

Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 with an aim to consolidate and 

streamline the provisions of the Lis�ng Agreement for different segments of capital markets to 

ensure be�er enforceability. The said regula�ons were effec�ve from December 1, 2015. 

Accordingly, all listed en��es were required to enter into the Lis�ng Agreement within six months 

from the effec�ve date. The Company has entered into fresh Lis�ng Agreement with BSE Limited.

6.  CODE OF CONDUCT FOR THE PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING:

 The Board of Directors has adopted the Insider Trading Policy in accordance with the 

requirements of the SEBI (Prohibi�on of Insider Trading) Regula�on, 2015. The Insider Trading 

Policy of the Company lays down guidelines and procedures to be followed, and disclosures to be 

made while dealing with shares of the Company. The policy has been formulated to regulate, 

monitor and ensure repor�ng of deals by employees and to maintain the highest ethical 

standards of dealing in Company securi�es.

 The Insider Trading Policy of the Company covering code of prac�ces and procedures for fair 

disclosure of unpublished price sensi�ve informa�on and code of conduct for the preven�on of 

insider trading, is available on website www.swagruhainfra.com.

7.  BOARD OF DIRECTORS

 A. COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD:          

 The Company is managed and controlled through a professional body of Board of Directors which 

is headed by Mrs. N.L. Kalyani, Managing Director. As on 31st March 2016, the Board of the 

Company has 6 Directors (including 3 Execu�ve Director and 3 Independent Non-Execu�ve 

Directors).  None of the Directors on the Board is a Member of more than 10 commi�ees or 

Chairman of more than 5 companies across all the Companies in which she is a Director.

 The Board has been enriched with the advices and knowledge of the Independent Directors. 

None of the Independent Directors has any pecuniary or business rela�onship except receiving 

si�ng fees. The composi�on of the Board of Directors as on 31.03.2016 and details of number of 

Directorships/commi�ee chairmanships/memberships a�endance par�culars is as under:

 B. ATTENDANCE OF EACH DIRECTOR AT BOARD MEETING HELD DURING THE YEAR AND LAST 

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND NUMBER OF OTHER BOARD OF DIRECTORS IN WHICH A 

DIRECTOR IS A MEMBER OR CHAIRPERSON.
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Name of
Director

Category of
Directorship

Number
of Directors
hips in other
Companies

Number of
Board
Commi�ee
memberships
held in other
Companies

A�endance Par�culars

Mem
ber

Chair
man

Last 
AGM
30.09.2015

Board
Mee�ng ‘15-16'

Held A�en
ded

Mrs. Nerogi Managing Director 1 – – Yes 5 5
Lakshmi Kalyani

Mr. Babu Execu�ve Director – – – Yes 5 5
Sahebe Shaik

Mr. Srinivasulu Non Execu�ve & – – – Yes 5 5
Konduru Independent Director

Mr. Gopal Non Execu�ve & – – – Yes 5 5
Gillela Independent Director

Mr. Mathew Independent Director
Oommen Non Execu�ve & – – – No 5 2
 Independent Director

* Appointed as director w.e.f 06.11.2015

C. MEETINGS DURING THE YEAR: 

 The Board of Directors duly met 5 (Five) �mes on 30.05.2015, 13.08.2015, 05.09.2015, 

06.11.2015 and 13.02.2016 in respect of which mee�ngs, proper no�ces were given and the 

proceedings were properly recorded and signed in the Minutes Book maintained for the purpose.

 D. DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN DIRECTORS INTER-SE 

 None of the Directors are inter-se related to each other. 

 E. NUMBER OF SHARES AND CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS HELD BY NON-EXECUTIVE 

DIRECTORS: 

 None of the Non-Execu�ve Directors of the company holds any shares and Conver�ble 

Instruments in their name.

8. AUDIT COMMITTEE:

 A. BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF TERMS OF REFERENCE:

 • Overview of the Company’s financial repor�ng process and disclosure of its financial 

informa�on to ensure that the financial statements reflect a true and fair posi�on and that 

sufficient and credible informa�on is disclosed.

 • Recommending the appointment and removal of external auditors, fixa�on of audit fee and 

also approval for payment for any other services.

 • Discussion with external auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of 
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audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

 • Reviewing the financial statements and dra� audit report including quarterly / half yearly 

financial informa�on. 

 • Reviewing with management the annual financial statements before submission to the 

Board, focusing on:

 a. Any changes in accoun�ng policies and prac�ces;

 b. Qualifica�on in dra� audit report;

 c. Significant adjustments arising out of audit;

 d. The going concern concept;

 e. Compliance with accoun�ng standards;

 f. Compliance with stock exchange and legal requirements concerning financial statements and

 g. Any related party transac�ons 

 • Reviewing the company’s financial and risk management’s policies.

 • Disclosure of con�ngent liabili�es.

 • Reviewing with management, external and internal auditors, the adequacy of internal control 

systems.

 • Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit func�on, including the audit character, the 

structure of the internal audit department, approval of the audit plan and its execu�on, 

staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, repor�ng structure, coverage 

and frequency of internal audit.

 • Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow-up thereon.

 • Reviewing the findings of any internal inves�ga�ons by the internal auditors into the ma�ers 

where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a 

material nature and repor�ng the ma�er to the Board.

 • Looking into the reasons for substan�al defaults in payments to the depositors, debenture 

holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors.

 • Reviewing compliances as regards the Company’s Whistle Blower Policy.

 B. COMPOSITION, MEETINGS & ATTENDANCE:

 There were four (4) Audit Commi�ee Mee�ngs held during the year on 30.05.2015, 13.08.2015, 

06.11.2015 and 13.02.2016.

Name Designa�on Category No. of
Mee�ngs
held

No. of
Mee�ngs
a�ended

Mr. Gopal Gillela Chairman NED (I) 4 4

Mr. Sinivasulu Konduru Member NED (I) 4 4

Mrs. Nerogi Lakshmi Kalyani Member ED 4 4

NED (I)      :    Non Execu�ve Independent Director
ED               :   Execu�ve Director
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9. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

The Commi�ee comprises of three non-execu�ve independent Directors

A. BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF TERMS OF REFERENCE:

• To approve the fixa�on/revision of remunera�on of Execu�ve Directors of the Company and 

while approving:

a. to take into account the financial posi�on of the Company, trend in the industry, appointee’s 

qualifica�on, experience, past performance, past remunera�on etc.

b. to bring out objec�vity in determining the remunera�on package while striking a balance 

between the interest of the Company and the Shareholders.

• To iden�fy persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in senior 

management in accordance with the criteria laid down and to recommend to the Board their 

appointment and /or removal.

• To carry out evalua�on of every Director’s performance.

• To formulate the criteria for determining qualifica�ons, posi�ve a�ributes and independence of a 

Director, and recommend to the Board a policy, rela�ng to the remunera�on for the Directors, 

key managerial personnel and other employees.

• To formulate the criteria for evalua�on of Independent Directors and the Board.

• To recommend/review remunera�on of the Managing Director and Whole-�me Director(s) 

based on their performance and defined assessment criteria.

Name Designa�on Category No. of
Mee�ngs
held

No. of
Mee�ngs
a�ended

Mr. Gopal Gillela Chairman NED (I) – --

Mr. Sinivasulu Konduru Member NED (I) – --

*Mr. Mathew Oommen Member NED(I)  – --

* Appointed w.e.f 06.11.2015

NED (I)     : Non Execu�ve Independent Director

B. COMPOSITION OF THE COMMITTEE, MEETINGS AND ATTENDANE DURING THE YEAR:

C. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION CRITERIA FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

 The Nomina�on & Remunera�on Commi�ee shall evaluate each individual with the objec�ve of 

having a group that best enables the success of the company’s business.

POLICY FOR SELECTION OF DIRECTORS AND DETERMINING DIRECTORS’ INDEPENDENCE:

1. Scope:

 This policy sets out the guiding principles for the Nomina�on & Remunera�on Commi�ee for 

iden�fying persons who are qualified to become Directors and to determine the independence of 

Directors, in case of their appointment as independent Directors of the Company.
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2. Terms and References:

2.1  “Director” means a director appointed to the Board of a Company.

2.2 “Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee means the commi�ee cons�tuted in accordance 

with the provisions of Sec�on 178 of the Companies Act, 2013,  clause 49 of the Equity Lis�ng 

Agreement and Regula�on 19 of  SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regula�ons, 2015.

2.3  “Independent Director” means a director referred to in sub-sec�on (6) of Sec�on 149 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, Clause 49(II)(B) of the Equity Lis�ng Agreement and Regula�on 19 of  SEBI 

(Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015.

3. Policy:

Qualifica�ons and criteria

3.1.1 The Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee, and the Board, shall review on annual basis, 

appropriate skills, knowledge and experience required of the Board as a whole and its 

individual members. The objec�ve is to have a board with diverse background and experience 

that are relevant for the Company’s opera�ons.

3.1.2 In evalua�ng the suitability of individual Board member the NR Commi�ee may take into 

account factors, such as: 

 m General understanding of the company’s business dynamics, global business and social    

perspec�ve;

 m Educa�onal and professional background

 m Standing in the profession;

 m Personal and professional ethics, integrity and values;

 m Willingness to devote sufficient �me and energy in carrying out their du�es and 

responsibili�es effec�vely.

3.1.3  The proposed appointee shall also fulfill the following requirements:

 m shall possess a Director Iden�fica�on Number;

 m shall not be disqualified under the companies Act, 2013;

 m shall Endeavour to a�end all Board Mee�ng and Wherever he is appointed as a Commi�ee 

Member, the Commi�ee Mee�ng;

 m shall abide by the code of Conduct established by the company for Directors and senior 

Management personnel;

 m shall disclose his concern or interest in any company or companies or bodies corporate, firms, 

or other associa�on of individuals including his shareholding at the first mee�ng of the Board 

in every financial year and therea�er whenever there is a change in the disclosures already 

made;

  Such other requirements as any be prescribed, from �me to �me, under the companies Act, 

2013, Equity lis�ng Agreements, SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regula�ons, 2015 and other relevant laws.
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3.1.4  The Nomina�on & Remunera�on Commi�ee shall evaluate each individual with the objec�ve 

of having a group that best enables the success of the company’s business.

3.2  Criteria of independence

3.2.1  The Nomina�on & Remunera�on Commi�ee shall assess the independence of Directors at 

�me of appointment/ re-appointment and the Board shall assess the same annually. The 

Board shall re-assess determina�ons of independence when any new interest or rela�onships 

are disclosed by a Director.

3.2.2  The criteria of independence shall be in accordance with the guidelines as laid down in 

Companies Act, 2013, Clause 49 of the Equity Lis�ng Agreement and Regula�on 16 of SEBI 

(Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015.

  An independent director in rela�on to a company, means a director other than a managing 

director or a whole-�me director or a nominee director-

 a. who, in the opinion of the Board, is a person of integrity and possesses relevant exper�se and 

experience;

 b. (I) who is or was not a promoters of the company or its holding, subsidiary or associate 

company;

  (ii) who is not related to promoters or directors of the company its holding, subsidiary or 

associate company

 c. who has or had no pecuniary rela�onship with the company, its holding, subsidiary or 

associate company, or their promoters, or director, during the two immediately preceding 

financial year or during the current financial year;

 d. none of whose rela�ve has or had pecuniary rela�onship or transac�on with the company, its 

holding, subsidiary or associate company, or their promoters, or directors, amoun�ng to two 

per cent or more of its gross turnover or total income or fi�y lakh rupees or such higher 

amount as may be prescribed, whichever is lower, during the two immediately preceding 

financial year or during the current finance year;

 e. who, neither himself nor any of his rela�ve-

 (i) Holds or has held the posi�on of a key managerial personnel or is or has been employee of the 

or associate company in any of the three finance years immediately preceding the finance 

year in which he is proposed to be appointed;

 (ii) Is or has been an employee or proprietor or a partner, in any of the three finance year 

immediately preceding the financial year in which he is proposed to be appointed of-

 (A) a firm of auditors or company secretaries in prac�ce or cost auditors of the company or its 

holding, subsidiary or associate company; or

(B) any legal or a consul�ng firm that has or had any transac�on with the company, its holding 

subsidiary or associate company amoun�ng to ten per cent or more of the gross turnover of 

more of the gross turnover of such firm;

(I) holds together with his rela�ves two per cent or more of the total vo�ng power of the company; 

or
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(ii)  is a chief Execu�ve or director, by whatever name called, of any non-profit organiza�on that 

receives twenty-five per cent or more of its receipt from the company any of its promoters , 

directors or its holding subsidiary or associate company or that holds two per cent or more of 

the total vo�ng power of the company; or

(iii)  is a material supplier, service provider or customer or a lesser  or lessee of the company. 

f.  Shall possess appropriate skills experience and knowledge in one or more field of finance, law 

management, sales, marke�ng administra�on, research, corporate governance, technical 

opera�ons, corporate social responsibility or this disciplines related to the company’s 

business.

g.  Shall possess such other qualifica�ons as may be prescribed from �me to �me, under the 

Companies Act, 2013.

h.  who is not less than 21 years of age

3.2.3  The independent Director shall abide by the “code for independent Directors “as specified in 

Schedule IV to the companies Act, 2013.

3.3  Other Directorships/ Commi�ee Memberships

3.3.1  The Board members are expected to have adequate �me and exper�se and experience to 

contribute to effec�ve Board performance Accordingly, members should voluntarily limit 

their directorships in other listed public limited companies in such a way that it does not 

interfere with their role as  director of the company. The NR Commi�ee shall take into account 

the nature of, and the �me involved in a director service on other Boards, in evalua�ng the 

suitability of the individual Director and making its recommenda�ons to the Board.

3.3.2  A Director shall not serve as director in more than 20 companies of which not more than 10 

shall be public limited companies.

3.3.3  A Director shall not serve an independent Director in more than 7 listed companies and not 

more than 3 listed companies in case he is serving as a whole-�me Director in any listed 

company.

3.3.4  A Director shall not be a member in more than 10 commi�ee or act as chairman of more than 

5 commi�ee across all companies in which he holds directorships.

  For the purpose of considering the limit of the commi�ee, Audit commi�ee and stakeholder’s 

rela�onship commi�ee of all public limited companies, whether listed or not, shall be 

included and all other companies including private limited companies, foreign companies and 

companies under sec�on 8 of the companies Act, 2013 shall be excluded.

10. STAKEHOLDER’S RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

A) COMPOSITION:

The Details of composi�on of the Commi�ee are given below:

Name Designa�on Category

Mr. Gopal Gillela Chairman NED (I) 

Mr. Sinivasulu Konduru Member NED (I) 

Mrs. Nerogi Lakshmi Kalyani Member ED 

NED (I)      :    Non Execu�ve Independent Director
ED               :   Execu�ve Director
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Name of the
Director

Salary (Rs) Si�ng
fees (Rs.)

Number of
Share held

Service
Contracts

Stock 
Op�on
Details

Fixed
Component

Perfor
mance
Based
Incen�ve

B. NAME AND DESIGNATION OF COMPLIANCE OFFICER

  Mrs. Nerogi Lakshmi Kalyani, Managing Director of the company is the compliance officer of 

the Company.

C. DETAILS OF COMPLAINTS/REQUESTS RECEIVED, RESOLVED AND PENDING DURING THE YEAR 15-16

INVESTOR COMPLAINTS

Par�culars      Year ended 31.03.2016

Pending at the beginning of the year    3

Received during the year     Nil

Disposed of during the year     Nil

Remaining unresolved at the end of the year   3

11. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS:

 A. PECUNIARY RELATIONSHIP OR TRANSACTIONS OF THE NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS VIS-À-VIS 

THE LISTED COMPANY: The Non- Execu�ve Directors have no pecuniary rela�onship or 

transac�ons.

 B. CRITERIA FOR MAKING PAYMENTS TO NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:  As per the remunera�on 

policy of the company.

 C. REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS PAID DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2015-16 AND OTHER 

DISCLOSURES:

Mrs. Nerogi – – 3,12,64,000 – – – --
Lakshmi Kalyani 

Mr. Jayasimha Reddy – – – – – – –

Mr. Babu Sahebe Shaik – – – – – – –

Mr. Srinivasulu Konduru – – – – – – –

Mr. Gopal Gillela – – – – – – –

Mr. Mathew Oommen – – – – – – –

D. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS’ MEETING:
 As per clause 7 of the schedule IV of the Companies Act (Code for Independent Directors), a 

separate mee�ng of the Independent Directors of the Company (without the a�endance of Non-

Independent directors) was held on 14.03.2016, and discussed the following:
1. Evalua�on of the performance of Non Independent Directors and the Board of Directors as 

whole;
2. Evalua�on of the quality, content and �melines of flow of informa�on between the management 

and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effec�vely and reasonably perform its du�es.
 All the Independent Directors of the Company were present at the mee�ng.
 As required under Regula�on 34(3) read with Schedule V of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons 2015, the company regularly familiarizes Independent 

Directors with the Company, their roles, rights, responsibili�es in the company, nature of the 

industry in which the company operates, business model of the company etc. 
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12. FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION:

 As per sec�on 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with clause VII (1) of the schedule IV and rules 

made thereunder, the independent directors of the company had a mee�ng on 14.03.2016 

without a�endance of non-independent directors and members of management. In the mee�ng 

the following issues were taken up:

 (a) Review of the performance of non-independent directors and the Board as a whole;

 (b) Review of the performance of the Chairperson of the company.

 (c) Assessing the quality, quan�ty and �meliness of flow of informa�on between the company 

management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effec�vely and reasonably perform 

their du�es.

 The mee�ng also reviewed and evaluated the performance of non-Independent directors. The 

company has 3 Non-Independent Directors namely:

 1. Mrs. Nerogi Lakshmi Kalyani

 2. Mr. Jayasimha Reddy

 3. Mr. Babu Sahebe Shaik  

 The mee�ng recognized the significant contribu�on made by all the above said directors, in 

direc�ng the Company towards the success path and placing the Company.

 The mee�ng also reviewed and evaluated the performance of the Board as whole in terms of the 

following aspects:

 m Preparedness for Board/Commi�ee mee�ngs

 m A�endance at the Board/Commi�ee mee�ngs

 m Guidance on corporate strategy, risk policy, corporate performance and overseeing 

acquisi�ons and disinvestments.

 m Monitoring the effec�veness of the company’s governance prac�ces

 m Ensuring a transparent board nomina�on process with the diversity of experience, 

knowledge, perspec�ve in the Board. 

 m Ensuring the integrity of the company’s accoun�ng and financial repor�ng systems, including 

the independent audit, and that appropriate systems of control are in place, in par�cular, 

systems for financial and opera�onal control and compliance with the law and relevant 

standards. 

  It was noted that the Board Mee�ngs have been conducted with the issuance of proper no�ce 

and circula�on of the agenda of the mee�ng with the relevant notes thereon. 

13. REMUNERATION POLICY:

  The objec�ves of the remunera�on policy are to mo�vate Directors to excel in their 

performance, recognize their contribu�on and retain talent in the organiza�on and reward 

merit.

  The remunera�on levels are governed by industry pa�ern, qualifica�ons and experience of 

the Directors, responsibili�es should and individual performance.

  Remunera�on policy for Directors, key managerial personnel and other employees
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1. Scope:

1.1 This policy sets out the guiding principles for the Nomina�on and Remunera�on commi�ee for 

recommending to the Board the remunera�on of the directors, key managerial personnel and 

other employees of the company.

2. Terms and Reference:

In this policy the following terms shall have the following meanings:

2.1 “Director” means a director appointed to the Board of the company.

2.2 “key managerial personnel” means 

 (i) The Chief Execu�ve Officer or the managing director or the manager;

 (ii) The Company Secretary;

 (iii) The Whole-�me Director;

 (iv) The Chief Finance Officer; and 

 (v) Such other office as may be prescribed under the companies Act, 2013

2.3 “Nomina�on and Remunera�on commi�ee” means the commi�ee cons�tuted by Board in 

accordance with the provisions of sec�on 178 of the companies Act, 2013, clause 49 of the Equity 

Lis�ng Agreement and Regula�on 19 of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regula�ons, 2015.

3. Policy:

3.1 Remunera�on to Execu�ve Director and key managerial personnel 

3.1.1 The Board on the recommenda�on of the Nomina�on and Remunera�on (NR) commi�ee 

shall review and approve the remunera�on payable to the Execu�ve Director of the company 

within the overall approved by the shareholders.

3.1.2 The Board on the recommenda�on of the NR commi�ee shall also review and approve the 

remunera�on payable to the key managerial personnel of the company.

3.1.3 The remunera�on structure to the Execu�ve Director and key managerial personnel shall 

include the following components:

 (i) Basic pay

 (ii) Perquisites and Allowances 

 (iii) Stock Op�ons

 (iv) Commission (Applicable in case of Execu�ve Directors)

 (v) Retrial benefits

 (vi) Annual performance Bonus

3.1.4 The Annual plan and Objec�ves for Execu�ve commi�ee shall be reviewed by the NR 

commi�ee and Annual performance bonus will be approved by the commi�ee based on the 

achievement against the Annual plan and Objec�ves.

3.2    Remunera�on to Non – Execu�ve Directors
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3.2.1 The Board, on the recommenda�on of the NR Commi�ee, shall review and approve the 

remunera�on payable to the Non – Execu�ve Directors of the Company within the overall 

limits approved by the shareholders as per the provisions of the Companies Act.

3.2.2 Non – Execu�ve Directors shall be en�tled to si�ng fees a�ending the mee�ngs of the Board 

and the Commi�ees thereof. The Non- Execu�ve Directors shall also be en�tled to profit 

related commission in addi�on to the si�ng fees.

3.3.  Remunera�on to other employees 

3.3.1.  Employees shall be assigned grades according to their qualifica�ons and work experience, 

competencies as well as their roles and responsibili�es in the organiza�on. Individual 

remunera�on shall be determined within the appropriate grade and shall be based on various 

factors such as job profile skill sets, seniority, experience and prevailing remunera�on levels 

for equivalent jobs.

14. RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE:

 A.) COMPOSITION:

 The Details of composi�on of the Commi�ee are given below:

Name Designa�on Category

Mr. Gopal Gillela Chairman NED (I) 

Mr. Sinivasulu Konduru Member NED (I) 

Mrs. Nerogi Lakshmi Kalyani Member ED 

NED (I)      :    Non Execu�ve Independent Director
ED               :   Execu�ve Director

B) ROLE AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE COMMITTEE INCLUDES THE FOLLOWING:

 m Framing of Risk Management Plan and Policy

 m Overseeing implementa�on of Risk Management Plan and Policy

 m Monitoring of Risk Management Plan and Policy

 m Valida�ng the process of risk management

 m Valida�ng the procedure for Risk minimisa�on.

 m Periodically reviewing and evalua�ng the Risk Management Policy and prac�ces with respect 

to risk assessment and risk management processes.

 m Con�nually obtaining reasonable assurance from management that al known and emerging 

risks have been iden�fied and mi�gated or managed.

15. DETAILS ON GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:

 A. LOCATION, DATE AND TIME OF LAST THREE AGMS AND SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS THERE AT AS 

UNDER:



49

2013-14 29.09.2014 9.30 am H.No. 6-3-1216/47-B-

Road No. 3, 

Methodist Colony, 

Begumpet, 

Hyderabad - 500016

1. Appointment of Mr. Babu 

Shaik as an Execu�ve Director.

2. Appointment of Mr. Srinivasulu 

Konduru as an Independent Director. 

3. Appointment of Mr. Gopal Gillela 

as an Independent Director.   

4. Appointment of Ms. Radhika R 

as an Independent Director.

2012-13 28.09.2013 9.30 am H.No. 6-3-1216/47-B-

Road No. 3, 

Methodist Colony, 

Begumpet, 

Hyderabad - 500016

1.Appointment of Mr. Jayasimha 

Reddy as Director

2. Appointment of Mr. Srinivasulu 

Konduru as an Independent Director. 

3. Appointment of Mr. Gopal Gillela 

as an Independent Director.   

4. Appointment of Ms. Radhika R 

as an Independent Director.

5. Appointment of 

Mrs. N L Kalyani as Director.

6. Appointment of Mrs. N L Kalyani 

as Managing Director for a period 

of 5 years w.e.f 23.03.2013.

7. Sub- Division of Equity share 

of the nominal value  of Rs. 10/- each 

fully paid in the capital of the 

company into Rs. 5/- each fully paid.

8.  Altera�on of Ar�cles of 

Associa�on

9. Altera�on of Memorandum of 

Associa�on 

10. Altera�on of Ar�cles of 

Associa�on by inser�ng new clause.

B. PASSING OF RESOLUTIONS BY POSTAL BALLOT:

  There were no resolu�ons passed by the Company through Postal Ballot during the financial 

year 2015-16.

16. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

  The quarterly, half-yearly and yearly financial results will be sent to the Stock Exchanges 

immediately a�er the Board approves the same and these results will also be published in 

prominent daily newspapers. These financial statements, press releases are also posted on 

the Company’s website, at www.swagruha.com. As the financial performance of the 

Company is well published, individual communica�on of half yearly results are not sent to the 

shareholders.
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17.   GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION:

A.    ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:

       Day, Date and Time: Friday, 30th September, 2016 at 09.00 a.m 

Venue: H.No. 6-3-1216/47-B-Road No. 3, Methodist Colony, Begumpet, Hyderabad – 500016

B. FINANCIAL YEAR AND FINANCIAL YEAR CALENDAR 2016-17 (TENTATIVE SCHEDULE)

Financial year to which the Annual General Mee�ng relates: 2015-16

Financial calendar: 2016-17 (tenta�ve)

Adop�on of Quarterly results for the Quarter ending

• 30th June, 2016   :  13.08.2016 (declared) 

• 30th September, 2016  :  on or before 14.11.2016

• 31st December, 2016  :  on or before 14.02.2017

• 31st March, 2017  : on or before 30.05.2017

Annual General Mee�ng (Next year): August / September, 2017

C. DIVIDEND PAYMENT DATE: No Dividend was declared during the Financial Year 2015-16.

D. NAME AND ADDRESS OF EACH STOCK EXCHANGE WHERE THE COMPANIES SECURITIES ARE 

LISTED: BSE LIMITED, P.J. Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai- 400001

E. STOCK CODE: 531909

F.  STOCK MARKET PRICE DATA: 

 Month High Low

 April’15 22.65 16

 May’15 24.85 20

 June’15 22.9 19.5

 July’15 21.9 14.1

 Aug’15 24.3 14.4

 Sept’15 25.8 21.75

 Oct’15 28.05 21.8

 Nov’15 20.9 15.4

 Dec’15 14.65 12.05

 Jan’16 11.81 9.64

 Feb’16 9.45 5.5

 Mar’16 5.23 4.82

G. IN CASE SECURITIES ARE SUSPENDED  FROM TRADING :
The securi�es are not suspended from trading on BSE Limited.
H. REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENTS:
Venture Capital and Corporate Investments Pvt. Limited
(Category-I Registrar & Share Transfer Agent)
12-10-167
Bharatnagar, Hyderabad-500018
Ph: 040-23818475/476, Fax: 040-23868024, E-mail: info@vccilindia.com



51

I. SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM:

 The Transfer of Shares is affected by the Registrars a�er necessary approval of the Board/Share 

Transfer Commi�ee. Transfer generally takes 1-2 weeks.

J. DEMATERIALISATION & LIQUIDITY OF SHARES:

 Trading in Company’s shares is permi�ed only in dematerialized form for all investors. The ISIN 

allo�ed to the Company’s scrip is INE587J01027 in BSE. Investors are therefore advised to open a 

demat account with a Depository par�cipant of their choice to trade in dematerialized form. 

Par�culars No. of Shares % Share Capital

NSDL 47239134 68.91

CDSL 17638866 25.73

PHYSICAL 3670000 5.36

Total 68548000 100.00

L) ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE: H. No. 6-3-121/47-B-Road No. 3, Methodist Colony, 

Begumpet, Hyderabad - 500016

M) BOOK CLOSURE DATE: 24th September, 2016 to 30th September, 2016 (both days inclusive)

N)   LISTING FEES: The equity shares of the Company are listed on BSE Ltd.

O) ELECTRONIC CONNECTIVITY: The Company has demat connec�vity with both NSDL and                            

CDSL. The ISIN is INE587J01027.

P) SHAREHOLDING PATTERN AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2016:

Sl. No. Category No. of
Shares

held

Percentage
of

Shareholding

     A Shareholding of Promoter & Promoter group

I. Individual   

 a) Indian 3,12,64,000 45.61

 b) Foreign  - -

 Sub-Total A 3,12,64,000 45.61

B Public Shareholding

I. Ins�tu�ons - -

II. Non Ins�tu�ons 3,72,84,000 54.39

 Sub Total B 3,72,84,000 54.39

 Grand Total (A+B) 6,85,48,000 100.00
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Shares Holders   Shares

 Nmuber % to Total No. of Shares % to Total

Upto  -    500 224 60.70 12517 0.09

501  -   1000 19 5.15 16025 0.02

1001  -   2000 10 2.71 16803 0.02

2001  -   3000 3 0.81 8500 0.01

3001  -   4000 6 1.64 22672 0.03

4001  -   5000 3 0.81 14118 0.02

5001  -  10000 15 4.07 131823 0.19

10001 and above 89 24.12 68325542 99.62

Total 369 100 68548000 100

Q) DISTRIBUTION SCHEDULE AS ON 31.03.2016:

18. OTHER DISCLOSURES

A. MATERIALLY SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

 During the year under review, the Company had not entered in to any materially significant 

transac�on with any related party. During the year, the Company had not entered into any other 

contract/arrangement/transac�on with related par�es which could be considered material in 

accordance with the policy of the company on materiality of related party transac�ons that may 

have poten�al conflict with the interests of the Company at large. All the related party 

transac�ons during the year are in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis.

B. COMPLIANCES:

 There are no penal�es imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any other 

statutory authority on any ma�er related to capital markets, during the last three years.

C. WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY:

 The Company has a whistle blower policy in place for repor�ng the instances of conduct which are 

not in conformity with the policy. Directors, employees, vendors or any person having dealings 

with the Company may report non-compliance to the Chairman of the Audit Commi�ee, who 

reviews the report. Confiden�ality is maintained of such repor�ng and it is ensured that the 

whistle blowers are not subjected to any discrimina�on. No person was denied access to the 

Audit Commi�ee. 

D. COMPLIANCE WITH THE MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS AND ADOPTION OF THE NON-

MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS OF SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISLOSURE 

REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015.

 All mandatory requirements of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regula�ons, 2015 have been appropriately complied with and the status of non-mandatory 

requirements is given below:
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     i. As there is no chairman of the Company the provisions for Non-Execu�ve Chairman are not 

applicable. All other requirements of the Board during the year have been complied with.

 ii. The financial Statements are free from any Audit Qualifica�ons.

E. WEB-LINK WHERE POLICY FOR DETERMINIG ‘MATERIAL’ SUBSIDIARIES IS   DISCLOSED.

 Your Company has no subsidiary Company.

F.  DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT: 

 The Company has complied with the appropriate accoun�ng policies and has ensured that they 

have been applied consistently. There have been no devia�ons from the treatment prescribed in 

the Accoun�ng Standards no�fied under Sec�on 129 of the Companies Act, 2013.

For and on behalf of the Board
Swagruha Infrastructure Limited

Sd/-
Place: Hyderabad N.L. Kalyani
Date: 30.08.2016  Chairman & Managing Director

         (DIN: 01669808)



54

CERTIFICATE BY THE MANAGING DIRECTOR & CFO OF THE COMPANY

To

The Board of Directors
Swagruha Infrastructure Limited

Dear Sirs,

 As required under Regula�on 17(8) read with Part B, Schedule II of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015, we state that:

1. We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31st 

March 2016 and to the best of our knowledge and belief;

 a. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement nor omit any material fact 

nor contain statements that might be misleading, and 

 b. These statements present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are in compliance 

with the exis�ng accoun�ng standards, applicable laws and regula�ons.

2. There are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, no transac�ons entered into by the company 

during the year, which are fraudulent, illegal or viola�ve of the company’s code of conduct.

3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls, I have evaluated the 

effec�veness of the internal control systems of the company and I have disclosed to the auditors 

and the audit commi�ee, deficiencies in the design or the opera�on of internal controls, if any, of 

which we was aware and the steps that we have taken or propose to take and rec�fy the iden�fied 

deficiencies and,

4.     That we have informed the auditors and the audit commi�ee of:

 a) Significant changes in the internal control during the year;

 b) Significant changes in accoun�ng policies during the year and that the same have been 

disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

 c) Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement of any 

employee having a significant role in the company’s internal control system.

Sd/-
Place: Hyderabad N.L. Kalyani
Date: 30.08.2016  Chairman & Managing Director

         (DIN: 01669808)

Sd/-
                    Babu Sahebh shaik

               Director cum Chief Financial Officer
               (DIN: 06716186)
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AUDITOR’S CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To

The Members of 
Swagruha Infrastructure Limited

 We have examined the Compliance with condi�ons of Corporate Governance of M/s. Swagruha  

Infrastructure Limited for the year ended 31st March, 2016 as s�pulated in Regula�on 34(3) read 

with Para E Schedule V of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 

2015.

 The Compliance with the condi�ons of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the 

Management. Our examina�on has been limited to review the procedures and implementa�ons 

thereof adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance with the condi�ons of the 

Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial 

statement of the Company.

 In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us 

and representa�ons made by the Directors and the Management’s, we cer�fy that the company 

has compiled with condi�ons of the Corporate Governance as s�pulated in Regula�on 34 (3) read 

with Schedule V of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 of 

the above men�oned Lis�ng agreement.

 As required by the guidance note issued by the ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India, we 

have to state that no grievances of investors are pending for a period exceeding one month 

against the Company as per the records maintained by the Company.

 We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to future viability of the 

Company nor of the efficiency or effec�veness with which the management has conducted the 

affairs of the company.

        

For M/S. VERMA MEHTA & ASSOCIATES. 

Firm Registra�on No. 112118W 
Chartered Accountants 

Sd/- 
Mrugen Shah 

Partner 
Membership No: 114770

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30.08.2016
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Aggregate No. of 
Shareholders and the 
outstanding shares in the 
suspense account at the 
beginning of the year.

No. of shareholders who 
approached the company 
for transfer of shares 
from suspense account 
during the year.

No. of shareholders to 
whom shares were 
transferred from 
suspense account 
during the year.

Aggregate No. of 
Shareholders and the 
outstanding shares in 
the suspense account 
at the end of the year.

Nil Nil Nil Nil

** Vo�ng Right on these shares shall remain frozen �ll the righ�ul owner of such shares claims the shares.

** 

DISCLOSURE WITH RESPECT TO DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT/ UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE ACOUNT

 As per Regula�on 34(3) read with Schedule V of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015, the company hereby discloses the details of unpaid/unclaimed 

dividend and the respec�ve share thereof as follows:
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

a) Industry Structure and Developments: 

 The world economy is gradually recovering from economic slowdown. The economic 

performance by the Asian economies has improved. Even though the global economy is 

expanding and condi�ons have improved considerably, the economic ac�vi�es remain far below 

the pre – crisis level and the pace and shape of recovery remains uncertain. With the 

government’s economic s�mulus package, the industry and service sector have recovered. With 

the Reserve Bank of India maintaining a prudent watch on the key policy issues, the liquidity 

situa�on in the country has become comfortable. However, high infla�on rate seems to be a 

major dampener.  

b) Opportuni�es, Outlook and Threats:

 The Company is trading in infrastructure materials and foresee increase in the turnover. The 

Board is of the view that infrastructure sector in Telangana and Andhra Pradesh has tremendous 

scope and the future outlook seems bright. High infla�on and changing government policies are 

threat to the Company, but the Company is confident that it can absorb such threats.  

c) Business performance 

 During the year under review, the Company has achieved the turnover of Rs. 24.25 lakhs for the 

financial year ended 31.03.2016 as against Rs. 27.89 lakhs for the financial year ended 

31.03.2015. The Profit a�er tax stood at Rs. 3.56 lakhs for the financial year ended 31.03.2016 as 

against Rs. 6.03 lakhs for the financial year ended 31.03.2015.

d) Risks and Concerns:

 i) The product is at once subjected to local, na�onal and interna�onal compe��on.

 ii) Any adverse change in the policies of the Government, Recession etc may further  adversely 

affect the profitability.

e) Internal Control System and its adequacy

 The system of internal control has been established to provide reasonable assurance of 

safeguarding assets and maintenance of proper Accoun�ng Records and its accuracy. The 

business risks and its control procedures are reviewed frequently. Systems audit is also conducted 

regularly to review the systems with respect to Security and its Adequacy. Reports are prepared 

and circulated to Senior Management and ac�on taken to strengthen controls where necessary.

f) Human resources and Industrial rela�ons

 Your company con�nues to have cordial rela�ons with its employees and other stakeholders.



BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2016

Par�culars
Note
No’s

As at March
31, 2016

As at March
31, 2015

1

2

A

3

4

B

5

6

7

C

(A+B+C)

8

A

B

9

10

11

12

C

(A+B+C)

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders’ Fund

Share Capital

Reserves and Surplus

Preference Share Warrant

Non-current liabili�es

Long term Borrowings

Deffered tax Liabili�es (Net)

Long term Provisions

Current liabili�es

Short term Borrowings

Trade Payables

Other Current Liabili�es

Short term provisions

Total

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Fixed assets

Gross Block

Less:Accumulateddeprecia�on/amor�za�on

Net block

Capital work – in –progress

Deffered tax assets(Net)

Long-term loans and advances

Non-current investments

Other Non- current assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Short term loans and advances

Other current assets

Total

68,548,000

(61,208,369)

62,500,000

698,39,631

-

-

-

-

-

314,725

-

1,150,000

1,464,725

71,304,356

393,693

368,123

25,570

-

25,570

62,500,000

-

-

62,500,000

-

8,271,641

16,425

-

4,90,720

8,778,786

71,304,356

68,548,000

(61,564,529)

62,500,000

69,483,471

-

-

-

-

-

285,294

-

900,000

1,185,294

70,668,765

393,693

368,123

25,570

-

25,570

62,500,000

-

-

62,500,000

-

7,643,697

8,778

-

490,720

8,143,195

70,668,765
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The Notes referred to above and the notes to accounts form an integral part of the Balance Sheet This is the Balance 
Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

M/S VERMA MEHTA & ASSOCIATES     
Firm Registra�on Number: 112118W         For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants  

Sd/-  Sd/- Sd/-
Mrugen Shah N L Kalyani Jayasimha Reddy
Partner  CMD & Compliance Officer Director
Membership No. 114770 DIN: 01669808 DIN: 06490738

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 30th May, 2015
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016

Par�culars
Note
No’s

As at March
31, 2016

As at March
31, 2015

13

14

8

15

INCOME

Turnover (Gross)

A. Gross value of Contract Works

 Less: Direct Expenses of Contract Works Income from 
Contract Work

 Less: Income Work offered in early year Net income 
from contract work

B. Income from Civil Works & Consultancy Income from 
opera�ons

 Other Income

Total Revenue

EXPENDITURE

Director Remunera�on

Personnel Cost

Administra�on expenses

Deprecia�on/amor�za�on

Bad debts Wri�en Off

Loans & Advances Wri�en Off

Total

Excep�onal Items (Refer Note no. 18 

of Schedule 20)

 Profit before tax

 Provision for taxa�on

- Current year

- Deferred tax

Total tax expense

Profit/(Loss) from con�nuing opera�ons 

Balance brought forward from previous year

Balance Carried to Balance Sheet 

Earnings per share

Basic

Weighted Number of Shares 

Nominal Value

Notes to accounts

2,425,140

-

2,425,140

-

2,425,140

-

-

-

2,425,140

-

8,90,410

9,28,570

-

-

-

1,818,980

-

606,160

2,50,000

-

2,50,000

356,160

(61,564,529)

(61,208,369)

0.003

685,480,000

1

3,501,580

2,750,462

751,118

-

751,118

2,037,845

-

-

2,788,963

-

910,486

973,428

1,918

-

-

1,885,832

-

903,131

300,000

-

300,000

603,131

(62,167,660)

(61,564,529)

0.01

685,480,000

1
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The Notes referred to above and the notes to accounts form an integral part of the Balance Sheet This is the Balance 
Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

M/S VERMA MEHTA & ASSOCIATES     
Firm Registra�on Number: 112118W         For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants  

Sd/-  Sd/- Sd/-
Mrugen Shah N L Kalyani Jayasimha Reddy
Partner  CMD & Compliance Officer Director
Membership No. 114770 DIN: 01669808 DIN: 06490738

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 30th May, 2015
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016

Par�culars
As at March

31, 2016
As at March

31, 2015

A.  CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit / ( Loss ) a�er tax as per Profit & Loss Account

Adjustments for :

Preliminary Expenses Wri�en Off

Deprecia�on

Bad Debts Wri�en Off

Advances Wri�en Off

Opera�ng Profit before working capital changes

Movements in working capital: (Increase)/Decrease in 
Trade Receivables (Increase)/Decrease in Inventories 
(Increase)/Decrease in Long term loans and advances 
(Increase)/Decrease in short term loans and advances 
(Increase)/Decrease in other current assets 
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables

Cash generated from/ (used in ) opera�ons

Taxes paid

Net Cash (Used In) / From Opera�ng Ac�vi�es

B.  CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Fixed assets

Sale of Fixed Assets

Fixed deposits

Dividends received

Net Cash Generated Used In Inves�ng Ac�vi�es

C.  CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Realisa�on of calls in arrears

Preference Share Warrant

Other Long Term Borrowings

Other Short term Unsecured Loans(Net)

Interest received

Interest Paid

Net Cash Generated From/(Used In) Financing Ac�vi�es

NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH

EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C)

Cash & Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash & Cash equivalents at the end of the year.

356,160

-

-

-

-

356,160

(627,944)

-

-

-

29,431

(242,353)

(242,353)

250,000

7,647

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

7,647

6,436

14,083

903,131

-

1,918

-

-

905,050

(1,084,817)

-

(62,500,000)

-

(372,486)

(110,000)

(63,162,253)

300,000

(62,862,253)

-

-

-

-

-

62,500,000

-

300,000

-

-

62,800,000

(62,253)

68,689

6,436
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This is the Cash Flow referred to in our report of even date.

M/S VERMA MEHTA & ASSOCIATES     
Firm Registra�on Number: 112118W         For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants  

Sd/-  Sd/- Sd/-
Mrugen Shah N L Kalyani Jayasimha Reddy
Partner  CMD & Compliance Officer Director
Membership No. 114770 DIN: 01669808 DIN: 06490738

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 30th May, 2015
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016

Par�culars
As at March

31, 2016
As at March

31, 2015

Notes to Account:  

Authorised  

 7,50,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.1/- each

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up

6,85,48,000 Equity shares of Rs.1/- each Less: Calls-in-
arrears

Reconcilia�on of shares outstanding at the beginning and 
at the end of the repor�ng period

Equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year

Add: Addi�onal shares issued during the year

Equity shares outstanding at the closing of the year

Terms/rights a�ached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having a 
par value of

10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is en�tled to 
vote one

vote per share.

In the event of liquida�on of the company, the holders of 
equity shares will be en�tled to receive remaining assets 
of the company, a�er distribu�on of all preferen�al 
amounts.

The distribu�on will be in propor�on to the number of 
equity shares

Held

Names of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares

Equity Shares

No Shareholder holds more than 5% Shares of the 
Company

N L Kalyani

l

Profit & Loss A/c Surplus

Balance in the statement of profit and loss

Addi�ons during the year

7,50,00,000

68,548,000

68,548,000

6,854,800

-

6,854,800

No of Shares

31,264,000

-

-

(61,564,529)

356,160

(61,208,369)

7,50,00,000

68,548,000

68,548,000

6,854,800

-

6,854,800

No of Shares

31,264,000

-

-

(61,564,529)

356,160

(61,564,529)

64



Par�culars
As at March

31, 2016
As at March

31, 2015

Note 3: Long term Borrowings

Loans and advances from banks

Term Loans

From banks

From others- Directors (unsecured)

Note 4: Deferred tax liabili�es(Net)

Opening Balance

Add/Less: Current year Provision

Note 5: Trade Payables

Creditors for Suppliers

Creditors for expenses

Note 6: Other Current Liabili�es

Other Liabili�es(mobiliza�on advance)

Note 7: Short- term provisions

Provisions for Income Tax

Provision for Income Tax Previous Year

Note 9: Trade receivables

(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)

Debts outstanding for a period exceeding six months

 Considered good

 Considered Doub�ul

Other Debts

 Receivables less than Six Months

Less: Bad Debts write off

Note 10: Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand

Balances with Noted banks

 On current accounts

 On deposit accounts

-

-

-

-

-

-

314,725

314,725

-

-

250,000

900,000

1,150,000

-

8,271,641

8,271,641

8,271,641

14,083

2,342

-

16,425

-

-

-

-

-

-

285,294

285,294

 

 -

-

 

 300,000

600,000

900,000

 

 

 

-

 

 

7,643,697

7,643,697

7,643,697

 6,436

 

 2,342

 -

 8,778
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Par�culars
As at March

31, 2016
As at March

31, 2015

Note 11: Short-term loans and advances

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or

For value to be received

Less: Advances Wri�en off Capital advances

Capital Advances

Less:Capital Advances Wri�en Off

Amount receivable on joint Venture

Amount receivable from Associate Concern

Other advances and deposits

Less: Other Advances and Deposits Wri�en Off

Note 12: Other current assets

Contract works in progress

Es�mated Income on Contract works in progress

TDS

Note 13: Personnel Cost

Salaries and incen�ves

Staff welfare Expenses

Note14: Administra�ve Expenses

Rates & Taxes

Office Maintenance

Travelling & Conveyance

Office Rent

Prin�ng & Sta�onery

Site visit expenses

Brouchers and posters

Computer Maintenance

BSE & Other Fees

Communica�on Expenses

Postage and couriers

Auditors remunera�on

Electricity Charges

Professional Fee

Vehicle Maintenance

Other Expenses

-

-

-

-

-

-

490,720

490,720

890,410

-

890,410

28,850

25,480

50,487

218,810

10,225

10,890

20,367

10,455

299,672

5,780

7,482

30,000

25,471

25,000

12,478,

25,123

928,570

-

-

-

-

-

-

490,720

490,720

910,486

-

910,486

41,253

55,489

91,547

195,450

29,547

64,781

15,248

6,547

301,180

45,824

6,524

30,000

15,243

25,000

10,254

39,541

973,428
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ROUTE MAP FOR AGM VENUE
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Form No. MGT-11

Proxy form

[Pursuant to sec�on 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies 

(Management and Administra�on) Rules, 2014]

CIN  : L24134TG1994PLC017327

Name of the company : Swagruha Infrastructure Limited

Registered office : H.No. 6-3-1216/47/B, Plot No.47-B, Road No.3, Methodist Colony, 

Begumpet, Hyderabad – 500016.

 

 Name of the member(s) :

 Registered Address:

 E-mail Id:

 Folio No./ Client Id:

 DP ID:

I/We, being the member (s) of …………. shares of the above named company, hereby appoint

1.  Name : ………....…………………………………………………………………………………………………………..................

 Address :_………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………....

 E-mail Id : ………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………....

 Signature: ……….............................……., or failing him

2.  Name : …..........…………………………………………………………………………………………………………..................

 Address :_………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………....

 E-mail Id : ………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………....

 Signature: ……….............................……., or failing him

3.  Name : ………….......……………………………………………………………………………………………………..................

 Address :_………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………....

 E-mail Id : ………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………....

 Signature: ……….............................…….

as my/our proxy to a�end and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 22nd  Annual 

General Mee�ng of the Company, to be held on Friday, 30th September, 2016 at 11.00 A.M at H.No. 6-

3-1216/47-B-Road No. 3, Methodist Colony, Begumpet, Hyderabad – 500016 and at any adjourned 

mee�ng thereof in respect of such resolu�ons as are indicated below:

Resolu�ons:

1. Approval of financial statements for the year ended 31.03.2016

2. Appointment of Mr. Jayasimha Reddy as a director of the company who re�res by   rota�on.

3. Appointment of statutory auditors and fixa�on of their remunera�on in place of re�ring auditor.

4.  Appointment of Mr. Mathew Oommen as Director of the company.

5. Adop�on of new set of Ar�cles of Associa�on as per Companies Act, 2013.

Signed this …..… day of………… 2016

Signature of shareholder         

Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Note:This form of proxy in order to be effec�ve should be duly completed and deposited at the  

Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the 

Mee�ng. 

Affix
Revenue

Stamp
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Swagruha Infrastructure Limited

Regd. Off.: H.No.6-3-1216/47/B, Plot No. 47-B,

Road No.3, Methodist Colony, Begumpet, Hyderabad, Telangana, 500016.

Email: info@swagruhainfra.com Website: www.swagruhainfra.com

22nd ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Friday, September 30, 2016 at 9.00 a.m.

ATTENDANCE SLIP

(Please present this slip at the Mee�ng venue)

I hereby record my presence for the 22nd  Annual General Mee�ng of the Company, to be held on 

Friday, 30th September, 2016 at 09.00 A.M at H.No. 6-3-1216/47-B-Road No. 3, Methodist Colony, 

Begumpet, Hyderabad – 500016 and at any adjourned mee�ng thereof.

Shareholders/Proxy‘s Signature.............................................................................................................

Shareholders/Proxy‘s full name.............................................................................................................
(In block le�ers)                                                                                                                              

Folio No./ Client ID.........................................

No. of shares held..........................................

Note:

Shareholders a�ending the mee�ng in person or by proxy are required to complete the 

a�endance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the mee�ng hall.



BOOK - POST

If Undelivered Please Return To:

SWAGRUHA INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
H. No. 6-3-1216/47/B, Plot No. 47B,

Road No. 3, Methodist Colony,
Begumpet Hyderabad - 500 016

Phone: 040-40203050
E-Mail : info@swagruhainfra.com
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